Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Weston Oklahoma City
April 27, 2004
- Summary of Action Items 1. Approved minutes of the March 16, 2004 meeting.
2. Approved the Strategic Planning Committee’s recommendations to conduct a coordinated costbenefit study in lieu of each jurisdictional Member proceeding independently, and the sharing of
the cost of this effort by all SPP Members.
3. Approved the Independent Market Monitor Selection Task Force’s recommendation to select
Boston Pacific as the Independent Market Monitor and direct SPP staff to develop and execute a
contract.
4. Approved the Operations Policy Committee’s recommendation for changes in SPP Criteria 2 to
clarify criteria concerning adequate capacity.
5. Approved modifications to Tariff Part IV including addition of Section 39 to clarify SPP as the sole
transmission provider.
6. Approved modifications to Tariff Attachment O to provide SPP with the authority to independently
oversee the regional transmission plan and solely determine the priority of transmission planning
projects.
7. Approved modifications to Tariff Attachment P to change the non-firm hourly “No Later Than”
Energy Scheduling deadline from 1500 day prior to 20 minutes prior to the hour.
8. Approved the addition of new Tariff Attachment Z to allow SPP to implement a process that allows
aggregation of multiple requests received during a specified time frame into a single study.
9. Approved the new Tariff Attachment AA for transmission customers to have the optional ability to
prepay for transmission service.
10. Approved modifications to Service Schedule 4-A to:
1. Clarify that Schedule 4-A would only apply to transactions across Control Area boundaries;
2. Provide a default basis for allocation of generation output among multiple schedules from a
single generator where the generation operator fails to provide a timely basis for settlement;
3. Set a reasonableness standard for acceptance of other arrangements as alternatives to
Schedule 4-A; and
4. Establish a new pricing basis for the charges under Schedule 4-A, replacing the use of the
individual Transmission Owner’s FERC approved Schedule 4 rates.
11. Approved the slate of nominees for the Members Committee to become effective May 1, 2004.
12. Approved the Finance Working Group’s recommendation for a scope statement as the charter of
the Finance Committee.
13. Approved a resolution for Mr. Al Strecker in honor of his retirement.

MINUTES NO. 93
Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Westin Oklahoma City
April 27, 2004

Agenda Item 1 - Administrative Items
SPP Chair Mr. Al Strecker called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. and thanked everyone present and
participating by phone for attending. Mr. Strecker then called for a round of introductions and referred to
the agenda (Agenda – Attachment 1). The following Board members were in attendance or represented
by proxy:
Ms. Phyllis Bernard, independent director
Mr. Nick Brown, Southwest Power Pool
Mr. David Christiano, City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Mr. Harry Dawson, Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Mr. Michael Deihl, Southwestern Power Administration
Mr. Jim Eckelberger, independent director
Ms. Trudy Harper, Tenaska Power Services Company
Mr. Doug Henry, Westar
Mr. Quentin Jackson, independent director
Mr. Joshua Martin, independent director
Mr. Mike Palmer, Empire District Electric Company
Mr. Stephen Parr, Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Mr. Gary Roulet, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
Mr. Robert Schoenberger, independent director
Mr. Harry Skilton, independent director
Mr. Richard Spring, Kansas City Power & Light
Mr. Jim Stanton, Calpine
Mr. Al Strecker, OG+E
Mr. Richard Verret, American Electric Power
Mr. Gary Voigt, Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation
Mr. Walt Yeager, Cinergy Services
There were 58 persons in attendance representing 27 members and 9 regulators (Attendance List Attachment 2). Mr. Brown reported no proxies and a quorum was declared.
Mr. Strecker referred to draft minutes of the March 16 meeting (3/16/04 Meeting Minutes - Attachment 3)
and asked for corrections or a motion for approval. Mr. Dawson moved that the minutes be approved as
presented. Mr. Martin seconded the motion, which passed unopposed.
Agenda Item 2 – President’s Report
Mr. Nick Brown presented the President’s Report (Executive Quarterly Report – Attachment 4). He stated
that Southwest Power Pool plans to make a compliance filing the first week in May to meet the conditions
in the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) order in the SPP RTO filing docket RT04-1 issued
on February 10, 2004. With actions taken at the March Board meeting and actions expected in today’s
meeting, Southwest Power Pool is prepared to meet the six conditions in the FERC order. Mr. Brown
stated that the Board released funding for the Imbalance Market last month and training is beginning on
May 18 with Market 101 in Kansas City. Mr. Brown stated that he and Mr. Tom Dunn (SPP) had met with
Standard & Poor’s on April 20 to update SPP’s investment rating. Mr. Brown said that letters had gone out
to members to rescind withdrawal letters to better qualify but no one had rescinded their withdrawal.
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Mr. Brown addressed the NERC initiatives stating that since the August 14 Blackout there had been an
accelerated transition to Version 0 of the Reliability Standards. Regional managers received a letter from
FERC Commissioner Pat Wood encouraging awareness and actions to address 14 Blackout recommendations
from the NERC. This has raised the bar for SPP and caused recognition of weaknesses that are being
addressed.
Agenda Item 3 – Regional State Committee Report
Oklahoma State Commission Chairman, Denise Bode was asked to give the Regional State Committee (RSC)
Report. Chairman Bode stated that this was an historic occasion with the formation of the SPP RSC, which
would act as a bridge between state and federal regulators. In their first meeting (April 26), the RSC adopted
bylaws and elected the following officers: President, Denise Bode (OCC); Vice President, Sandra Hochstetter
(APSC); Secretary, Julie Parsley (PUCT); and Treasurer, David King (NMPRC). Chairman Bode said that the
next step would be development of a budget. Initiatives of the RSC are to become a contracting party for the
cost-benefit study and to provide leadership in the upgrading and expansion of transmission facilities. A
document has been drafted which outlines direction for the group and will be discussed at a May 5 RSC
meeting. In the future it is planned to hold regular meetings the day prior to the SPP Board of Directors
meetings and to work with the SPP Staff, their next meeting being July 26 in Kansas City.
Agenda Item 4 – Strategic Planning Committee Report
Mr. Richard Spring presented the Strategic Planning Committee Report (SPC Report – Attachment 5). Mr.
Spring stated that the SPC formed a Cost-Benefit Task Force (CBTF) comprised of the following:
•
•
•
•

SPC Members: Richard Spring, Michael Desselle, Ricky Bittle, Mel Perkins
Other Members and/or Member technical experts: Robin Kittel, Shah Hossain
RSC Representatives: Sam Loudenslager, John Cita, Kelli Leaf, Ken Zimmerman
SPP Staff: Jeff Price

The CBTF developed a scope of the project for the independent consultant(s) to oversee the study, general
contract terms for those services (CBTF Scope – Attachment 6). It was concluded that a coordinated study
was preferred over independent studies and that all SPP Members share the costs. A Request for Proposal
has been developed to distribute to 8 potential vendors (RFP – Attachment 7). Mr. Spring moved that the
Board approve the following recommendation:
The SPC recommends that the approach described be approved for pursuit of a cost-benefit study,
including authorization for this project as an unbudgeted item for FY2004. The SPC will present an
exact expenditure request and a methodology for inclusion of the RSC for approval following receipt of
proposals and selection of a vendor.
Mr. Schoenberger seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Agenda Item 5 – Independent Market Monitor Selection Task Force Report
Mr. Jim Stanton presented the Independent Market Monitor Selection Task Force Report (IMMSTF Report –
Attachment 8). Mr. Stanton recognized members of the IMMSTF as: Jim Stanton (Calpine), Chair, Seth
Brown (ETEC), Joshua Martin (independent Director), Mel Perkins (OG&E), Richard Ross (AEP), Bob
Schoenberger (independent Director); Carl Monroe is the SPP staff member with assistance from Richard
Dillon. Four vendors submitted bids to SPP in response to the RFP. After reviewing the bid documents, the
IMMSTF met with three vendors for oral presentations on April 13. Following the oral presentations, the
IMMSTF evaluated each vendor. An evaluation matrix was developed to aid in the process. The vendor
chosen was Boston Pacific out of Washington D.C. Mr. Stanton moved that the following recommendation be
approved:
Based on review of the proposals and evaluation of the vendors, the IMMSTF recommends that the
Board of Directors ratify the selection of Boston Pacific and direct the SPP staff to develop and execute
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a contract under the SPP contract approval guidelines for the engagement of the Independent Market
Monitor, absent any material deviation from the proposal.
Mr. Josh Martin seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Agenda Item 6 – Operations Policy Committee
Mr. Mel Perkins presented the Operations Policy Committee Report (OPC Report – Attachment 9). Mr.
Perkins stated that the OPC had the following recommendations to present to the Board for approval:
•
•

•

•

•

•

•

SPP Criteria 2 (Attachment 10): These changes are to clarify criteria concerning adequate capacity.
Mr. Brown moved to approve changes to Criteria 2. Mr. Henry seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously.
Modification to Tariff Part IV including addition of Section 39 (Attachment 11): Language was
proposed by Mike Small to clarify that SPP is the sole transmission provider meeting conditions of the
February 10 Order granting SPP RTO Status. Mr. Palmer moved to approve this recommendation.
Mr. Yeager seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Modifications to Tariff Attachment O (Attachment 12): The proposed changes are to provide SPP with
the authority to independently oversee the regional transmission plan and solely determine the priority
of transmission planning projects that address reliability and economic needs. Mr. Stanton moved to
approve Attachment O modifications. Mr. Roulet seconded the motion, which passed with Mr. Dawson
abstaining.
Modifications to Attachment P (Attachment 13): This is to change the Non-Firm hourly “No Later Than”
Energy Scheduling deadline from 1500 day prior to 20 minutes prior to the hour. The change facilitates
conduct of the Non-Firm hourly market. Ms. Harper moved to approve modifications to Attachment P.
Mr. Yeager seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Addition of new Tariff Attachment Z (Attachment 14): SPP proposes to implement a process that
allows aggregation of multiple requests received during a specified time frame into a single study. This
will allow SPP to process multiple requests together improving the response time for long-term
requests. Additionally, cost sharing of upgrades will be implemented to distribute the costs of upgrades
that provide benefit to multiple requests. There were concerns about the cost-sharing problem but felt
these concerns would be addressed in the participant funding process. Mr. David Brian presented a
memo (Memo – Attachment 15) stating concerns with Tariff Attachment Z and Attachment AA.
Following much discussion, Mr. Stanton moved to approve the recommendation for the addition of
Attachment Z. Mr. Skilton seconded the motion, which passed with Ms. Harper in abstention and Mr.
Eckelberger, Mr. Christiano and Mr. Dawson in opposition.
New Tariff Attachment AA (Attachment 16): Under this proposal transmission customers have the
optional ability to prepay for transmission service. This prepayment shall be provided back to the
customer as a credit. The prepayment will be placed in an interest bearing account with the interest
added to the credited amount. The credits will be applied to the customer’s monthly invoice at the time
the transmission owner expenditures occur. This shall continue until the customer has been fully
reimbursed for the prepayment. This attachment is to be a one-year experiment. Mr. Stanton moved
to approve Attachment AA. Mr. Roulet seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Modifications to Service Schedule 4-A (Attachment 17): These modifications are to:
1. Clarify that Schedule 4-A would only apply to transactions across Control Area boundaries;
2. Provide a default basis for allocation of generation output among multiple schedules from a single
generator where the generation operator fails to provide a timely basis for settlement;
3. Set a reasonableness standard for acceptance of other arrangements as alternatives to Schedule
4-A; and
4. Establish a new pricing basis for the charges under Schedule 4-A, replacing the use of the
individual Transmission Owner’s FERC approved Schedule 4 rates.
Mr. Voigt moved to approve Attachment 4-A. Mr. Henry seconded the motion, which passed with Mr.
Dawson in abstention.
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Mr. Perkins then gave a brief overview of current activities of the 14 working groups reporting to the OPC,
including updates on Market implementation, transmission planning, actions on Blackout
recommendations, seams efforts and the compliance program.
Agenda Item 7 – Corporate Governance Committee Report
Mr. Brown presented the Corporate Governance Committee Report (CGC Report – Attachment 18). He stated
that this committee, formerly the Nominating Task Force, consists of the following members representing each
sector: David Christiano (municipals), Steve Parr (cooperatives), Mike Deihl (federal agencies), Nick Brown, Al
Strecker (investor owned utilities), and Jim Stanton (IPP market). In the FERC Order conditionally granting
SPP RTO status, it was clearly required to transition to a non-stakeholder Board of Directors. This transition
also included a new committee structure for the Committees Reporting to the Board of Directors, per Section
6.0 of the Bylaws effective May 1, 2004. Mr. Brown moved to approve the following recommendation:
The Corporate Governance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve the slate of
nominees presented for the Committees Reporting to the Board of Directors to become effective May
1, 2004.
Mr. Yeager seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Agenda Item 8 – Finance Working Group Report
Mr. Harry Skilton gave the Finance Working Group report (FWG Report – Attachment 19). The Board of
Directors established a Finance Committee in its draft bylaws submitted with SPP’s RTO application to the
FERC. Mr. Skilton stated that a scope document has been developed as a charter to support the existence of
the Finance Committee. Mr. Skilton moved to approve the following recommendation:
The Finance Working Group recommends the SPP Board of Directors accept the Finance Committee
Scope Statement as the charter of the Finance Committee, and approve the detailed responsibilities and
authorities of the Finance Committee.
Mr. Eckelberger seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Other Business
Mr. Eckelberger reported that the Employee Benefit Working Group (EBWG) had picked the best of 3
contractors to do an employee survey as authorized by Mr. Tom Dunn. The results should be available in two
to three months and will be reported to the Board of Directors.
The next Board of Directors Meeting will be a special teleconference meeting held sometime in late May.
Possible issues to be addressed are: Criteria 4, Funding for the Cost-Benefit Study, filings in Arkansas and
Kansas and possible others, and final approval of financing. The next regular Board meeting will be July 27 in
Kansas City.
Mr. Brown announced that there was a scheduled press conference following the Board meeting at 12:00 p.m.
All were invited to attend. The Special Meeting of Members is to begin at 1:00 p.m. Mr. Brown then made a
presentation to Mr. Strecker in honor of his retirement on June 1. Mr. Strecker was presented with a clock for
his future office and a resolution for his exemplary service to SPP (Strecker Resolution – Attachment 20). Mr.
Brown moved that this resolution be accepted. Mr. Palmer seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Mr. Christiano acknowledged that Marvin Caraway (City of Clarksdale, Mississippi) was also retiring and had
served many years in this business.
Adjournment
With no further business, Mr. Strecker thanked everyone for participating and adjourned the meeting at 11:32
p.m.
Stacy Duckett, Corporate Secretary

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING and SPECIAL MEETING OF MEMBERS
April 26 - 27, 2004
The Westin Hotel – Oklahoma City, OK
• AGENDA •
Monday, April 26
5:00 – 7:00 p.m.
Reception hosted by Oklahoma Corporation Commission Chairman Denise Bode at her
home.

Tuesday, April 27
9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.
(Continental Breakfast will be available at 8 a.m.)
Board of Directors Meeting
1. Administrative Items............................................................................ Mr. Al Strecker
2. President’s Report................................................................................Mr. Nick Brown
3. Regional State Committee Report.............................................State Representatives
4. Strategic Planning Committee Report ............................................ Mr. Richard Spring
5. Independent Market Monitor Selection Task Force............................. Mr. Jim Stanton
6. Operations Policy Committee Report .................................................. Mr. Mel Perkins
7. Corporate Governance Committee Report...........................................Mr. Nick Brown
8. Finance Working Group Report........................................................ Mr. Harry Skilton
Adjourn for Special Meeting of Members

Special Meeting of Members
1. Administrative Items........................................................................ Mr. Al Strecker
2. Board of Directors Report ......................................................... Mr. Richard Spring
3. Corporate Governance Committee Report .....................................Mr. Nick Brown

Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
DFW Airport Hyatt Regency, Dallas, TX
March 16, 2004
- Summary of Action Items 1. Approved minutes of the January 27 and February 29, 2004 meetings.
2. Approved the Strategic Planning Committee’s recommendations to comply with conditions in
SPP’s RTO order including:
1) SPP staff should make a compliance filing in the RTO docket indicating compliance status
with the conditions/issues noted by FERC and in accordance with the reports provided, as
soon as possible following the April 27 Board of Directors meeting.
2) Acceptance of the SPP Bylaws as presented, including an effective date of May 1, 2004.
3) Acceptance of the SPP Membership Agreement as filed, including an effective date of May 1,
2004.
4) The SPP Board of Directors should recommend for approval to the SPP Membership the
revisions to Section 4.0 of the SPP Bylaws required by the compliance filing.
5) In accordance with the revised Bylaws, the Corporate Governance Committee should be
developed and convene for purposes of preparing:
a. Slates of candidates for the committees reporting to the Board of Directors to be
nominated to the Board of Directors at its April 27 meeting; and
b. A slate of candidates for the Members Committee to be nominated to the
Membership at its April 27 meeting.
c. Elections would be effective with the revised Bylaws (May 1).
6) Release of the budgeted funds required to resume the Energy Imbalance and Market
Monitoring/Mitigation components of the market implementation project, including
authorization for the officers of the company to obtain proposals for the long-term financing
needed to provide those funds.
7) Direct the RTWG to review prior to, but no later than, its April 8 meeting the tariff language
suggested by Mike Small to clarify that SPP is the sole transmission provider, and make a
recommendation to the OPC for consideration at its April 14-15 meeting, for further
recommendation to the Board of Directors at its April 27 meeting.
3. Approved the Finance Working Group’s recommendation for SPP staff to obtain an $8 million
revolving credit facility, and to negotiate but not yet commit to borrow $25 million in medium-term
financing to meet SPP’s capital budget requirements.
4. Approved the Finance Working Group’s recommendation regarding Member Overpayments, and
applying $3.3 million in member equity to future financial needs.

MINUTES NO. 92
Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
DFW Airport Hyatt Regency, Dallas, TX
March 16, 2004

Agenda Item 1 - Administrative Items
SPP Chair Mr. Al Strecker called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. and thanked everyone present and
participating by phone for attending. Mr. Strecker then called for a round of introductions and referred to
the agenda (Agenda – Attachment 1). The following Board members were in attendance or represented
by proxy:
Ms. Phyllis Bernard, independent director
Mr. Nick Brown, Southwest Power Pool
Mr. David Christiano, City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Mr. Harry Dawson, Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Mr. Jim Sherwood, proxy for Mr. Michael Deihl, Southwestern Power Administration
Mr. Jim Eckelberger, independent director
Ms. Trudy Harper, Tenaska Power Services Company
Mr. Doug Henry, Westar
Mr. Quentin Jackson, independent director
Mr. Joshua Martin, independent director
Mr. Mike Palmer, Empire District Electric Company
Mr. Stephen Parr, Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Mr. Gary Roulet, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
Mr. Robert Schoenberger, independent director
Mr. Harry Skilton, independent director
Mr. Richard Spring, Kansas City Power & Light
Mr. Jim Stanton, Calpine
Mr. Al Strecker, OG+E
Mr. Richard Verret, American Electric Power
Mr. Ricky Bittle, proxy for Mr. Gary Voigt, Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation
Mr. Walt Yeager, Cinergy Services
There were 37 persons in attendance representing 19 members (Attendance List - Attachment 2). Mr.
Brown received two proxy statements (Proxies - Attachment 3) and a quorum was declared.
Mr. Strecker referred to draft minutes of the January 27 meeting (1/27/04 and 2/19/04 Meeting Minutes Attachment 4) and asked for corrections or a motion for approval. Mr. Martin moved that the minutes be
approved as presented. Mr. Schoenberger seconded the motion, which passed unopposed. Mr. Strecker
then referred to draft minutes of the February 19, 2004 meeting and asked for corrections or a motion for
approval. Mr. Skilton moved that the minutes be approved as presented. Mr. Bittle seconded the motion,
which passed unopposed.
Agenda Item 2 – President’s Report
Mr. Nick Brown presented the President’s Report. He stated that Southwest Power Pool received a
conditional order from FERC for recognition as a Regional Transmission Organization (RTO) on February
10, 2004 in response to the October 2003 application after making three previous filings in December
1999, October 2000, and May 2001. This order was conditional with compliance required for the following
issues:
• Implement independent Board
• SPP as sole transmission provider
• Sufficient transmission authority
• Independent market monitor
• Independent transmission planning
• MISO seams agreement
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The Strategic Planning Committee will present recommendations for a compliance filing addressing these
conditions. Last week was the deadline for filings and comments on the RTO order. Twelve filings were
made and will be distributed by Friday. A summary of the issues raised will also be compiled and provided
to the Board.
On Friday, March 19, FERC is holding a technical conference for SPP on a White Paper on Bulk Power
Market Design. This conference is in conjunction with a Participant Funding Symposium scheduled for
Thursday, March 18.
Implementation of NERC Blackout recommendations began last week with a Readiness Audit for AEP. A
Compliance Template Task Force has been formed and templates were posted on March 15 with a
deadline for comments of March 19. Mr. Brown encouraged members to be mindful and aware that
Blackout recommendations and compliance are on a very fast track. A NERC Policy Transmission Task
Force has formed to adopt current NERC policies and make new policies going forward with the
Compliance Template Task Force.
NAESB has four initiatives to be aware of: reliability, OASIS, improve current operations, and the
wholesale gas quadrant.
Mr. Brown addressed administrative issues and stated that SPP is currently $2.3 million under budget due
to the freezing of funds and slow down of the market initiative. A quarterly report will soon be distributed to
the Board and membership. He stated that SPP is reviewing its tax status, which is currently a 501(c)(6)
and will probably remain the same, but warrants a review by counsel. Reasons to review the tax status
include: 1) SPP cannot lobby with the current status, and 2) the shift in governance. Mr. Brown noted that
SPP had reached a technical milestone in that 45,000 minutes of teleconference meetings had been
logged thus far in 2004. He pointed out that every port used is a cost and encouraged companies where
several were dialing in to gather in a single room rather than each individual dial in. This would help
mitigate costs for teleconference meetings.
Mr. Brown stated that he was in the process of making visits to each of the seven states in the SPP
footprint. Currently he has met face-to-face with three states and is also trying to meet with as many
members as possible.
Mr. Brown recognized the need to form a Regional State Committee (RSC) sooner rather than later. He
emphasized that transmission expansion costs are due to be rolled-in to zone rates in 2005 and SPP
desperately needs collective state input. He encouraged all to attend the FERC conference scheduled for
Friday.
Agenda Item 3 – Strategic Planning Committee Report
Mr. Richard Spring presented the Strategic Planning Committee Report (SPC Presentation & Report –
Attachment 5). Mr. Spring reviewed the history of SPC activities and outlined recommendations to make a
compliance filing in the RTO docket meeting FERC conditions. Mr. Skilton moved to approve and Ms.
Phyllis Bernard seconded the following SPC recommendations to the Board of Directors:
1. SPP staff should make a compliance filing in the RTO docket indicating compliance status with
the conditions/issues noted by FERC and in accordance with the reports provided, as soon as
possible following the April 27 Board of Directors meeting.
2. Acceptance of the SPP Bylaws as presented, including an effective date of May 1, 2004.
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3. Acceptance of the SPP Membership Agreement as filed, including an effective date of May 1,
2004.
4. The SPP Board of Directors should recommend for approval to the SPP Membership the
revisions to Section 4.0 of the SPP Bylaws required by the compliance filing.
5. In accordance with the revised Bylaws, the Corporate Governance Committee should be
developed and convene for purposes of preparing:
a. Slates of candidates for the committees reporting to the Board of Directors to be
nominated to the Board of Directors at its April 27 meeting; and
b. A slate of candidates for the Members Committee to be nominated to the Membership at
its April 27 meeting.
Elections would be effective with the revised Bylaws (May 1).
6. Release of the budgeted funds required to resume the Energy Imbalance and Market
Monitoring/Mitigation components of the market implementation project, including authorization for
the officers of the company to obtain proposals for the long-term financing needed to provide
those funds.
7. Direct the RTWG to review prior to, but no later than, its April 8 meeting the tariff language
suggested by Mike Small to clarify that SPP is the sole transmission provider, and make a
recommendation to the OPC for consideration at its April 14-15 meeting, for further
recommendation to the Board of Directors at its April 27 meeting.
Prior to discussion, Mr. Doug Henry presented an alternative to the SPC’s recommendations representing
Empire District, Kansas City Power & Light, Midwest Energy and Westar (MO-KS Presentation –
Attachment 6). He stated there is a recognized need for market implementation but that the current order
contains regulatory uncertainties for utility members, primarily that of state commission approval for
participation, and timing of RTO compliance and market implementation. He outlined major outstanding
issues and an alternative schedule for RTO compliance. Mr. Henry made the following recommendation to
the Board of Directors:
•
•

Take no significant, irreversible actions (e.g., releasing market development funds and
transitioning to the Independent Board) without some clarity on state approvals
Incorporate the attached timeline into the SPC recommendation.

After much discussion including several changes suggested by Mr. Harry Dawson, an amendment was
added to the SPC recommendations to clarified implied intentions that were not specifically stated:
8. Direct SPP Committees, Working Groups and Staff to accelerate regional transmission planning
initiatives, document and publicize the 8-year financial plan, and augment the efforts of Member
companies to perform timely cost-benefit analysis for their respective regulatory bodies.
It was agreed that all documents for the RTO compliance filing would come back to the Board at the April
27, 2004 meeting for final review. Mr. Strecker called for a vote on the SPC recommendations with the
addition of the eighth recommendation. The motion passed with opposing votes from Mr. Henry and Mr.
Palmer, and Mr. Sherwood abstaining. It is planned to make a compliance filing in early May.
Agenda Item 4 – Finance Working Group Report
Mr. Harry Skilton gave the Finance Working Group report (FWG Report – Attachment 7). He explained
that in reviewing the conditions set forth in the order for recognition as an RTO received on February 10,
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2004 and the Board of Directors authorizing SPP to move forward, SPP needed to obtain financing
sufficient to fund these market initiatives and SPP’s working capital needs. Mr. Skilton moved to approve
the following FWG recommendation:
The Finance Committee recommends the SPP Board of Directors approve the following resolution
authorizing the SPP President to execute the required financing documents to obtain an $8 million
revolving credit facility to fund working capital needs. The Finance Committee further recommends
that SPP staff take necessary steps to negotiate $25 million in medium-term financing. However,
these recommendations stop short of authorizing SPP to commit to borrow $25 million in mediumterm financing. The Finance Committee further recommends that SPP staff report to the Finance
Committee and the SPP Board of Directors following negotiations with lenders, the terms and
conditions under which SPP may commit to borrow at the April 27 meeting.
Mr. Bob Scheonberger seconded this motion, which passed with Mr. Sherwood abstaining.
Mr. Skilton then presented a report regarding Member Overpayment (Member Overpayment Resolution –
Attachment 8). He explained that since the implementation of the SPP Tariff when assessments of
members have exceeded 20% of SPP annual expenditures this was termed “Member Overpayments”.
Effective October 1, 2003, the member assessment formula was changed to eliminate any future
additions to overpayments. As of December 31, 2003 the accumulated cash balance totaled $3.3 million.
It was the intent as resolved in November 1999 to repay Member Overpayments. In reviewing these
repayments and future expenditures required for initiatives that will result in increased costs for members
and customers through 2006, the FWG thought it would best serve everyone if the $3.3 million would be
applied to reduce future financial burdens. Mr. Skilton moved to approve the following recommendation:
The Finance Committee recommends the SPP Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution
authorizing resolution of the Member Overpayment issue by utilizing excess cash on hand currently
to reduce future cash requirements.
Mr. Quentin Jackson seconded this motion, which passed unopposed.
Other Business
Mr. Jim Eckelberger reported that the Employee Benefit Working Group (EBWG) has agreed to employ a
firm to do a salary survey and would bring an RFP and information to the Board meeting in April. The
Board of Directors will hire this firm; however, the SPP staff will have access to contract negotiations as
well as data gathered.
The next Board of Directors Meeting and a special called Meeting of Members is April 27, 2004, in
Oklahoma City.
Adjournment
With no further business, Mr. Strecker thanked everyone for participating and adjourned the meeting at
2:20 p.m.
Stacy Duckett, Corporate Secretary
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SPP BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE QUARTERLY REPORT
1Q 2004

Assessments/Tariff Fees
Cash

$9.8M
$12.0M

Operating Cash Flow

$2.6M

Operating Expenses

$7.4M

TLR Events
Tags (daily average)
Transmission Service Requests
Transmission Service Study Queue

23
489
27,844
122 requests/
53 studies

Generation Interconnection Queue
Stakeholder Meetings

50 requests
42

FERC Dockets Pending

7

Lawsuits Pending

1

Officer Speaking Engagements

5

Number of Members

48

Withdrawal Notices

12

Staff

119

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1Q 2004

Balance Sheet
• Member’s Equity represents 16% of capitalization.
• Liquidity diminished following the payment of the first installment of the long-term debt.
• SPP is currently finalizing placement of an $8MM working capital facility.
Income Statement
• Revenues are tracking closely with budget for the first quarter.
• Operating expenses are below budget as a result of:
o Actual staff level of 120 vs. a budget of 136;
o Travel is down due to the greater use of teleconference facilities;
o The delay in the implementation of the 24x7 maintenance on the market system;
and
o The delay in commercial operations under the Accenture contract.
• Anticipate “catch-up” in all areas excluding salary and maintenance during the remainder
of the year.

Cash Flow
• Cash position is reduced $3MM from FYE’03.
• Operations generated a positive cash flow of $2.6MM; 2004 forecast indicated a net cash
shortfall during 1Q.
• Capital expenditures were funded by operating cash flow during 1Q.
Capital Expenditure Summary
• The capital expenditures summary reflects the delay in the implementation of the energy
imbalance and market monitoring projects. Anticipate “catch-up” during the remainder of
the year.

Southwest Power Pool

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2004
Mar 31, 04
ASSETS
Current Assets
Total Checking/Savings
Total Accounts Receivable
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation
Equipment and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Software
Software Under Development
Total Fixed Assets
Total Other Assets, net

12,000,720.76
23,152,652.20
851,688.31
36,005,061.27

-15,323,620.00
4,629,798.00
2,195,166.32
13,920,760.16
14,034,379.00
19,456,483.48
80,773.00

TOTAL ASSETS

55,542,317.75

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Total Accounts Payable

19,666,516.45

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Liabilities
Current Portion of LT Liability
Deposits (Customers)
Other Current Liabilities
Total Other Current Liabilities

455,290.43
5,000,000.00
11,486,838.24
41,754.75
16,983,883.42

Total Current Liabilities

36,650,399.87

Long Term Liabilities
Private Placement
Total Long Term Liabilities

15,000,000.00
15,000,000.00

Total Liabilities

51,650,399.87

Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity

1,568,709.74
2,323,208.14
3,891,917.88

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

55,542,317.75
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Southwest Power Pool

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through March 2004

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Miscellaneous Income
Tariff
Assessment of Members
Member Fees
Total Income
Expense
Salary & Benefits
Employee Travel
Administrative
NERC Assessment
SPP/NERC Meetings
Communications
Leases & Maintenance
Services
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Gain or Loss on Sale Fx Asset
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Depreciation
Interest Expense
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income
Net Income

Jan - Mar 04

Budget

$ Over Budget

Jan - Mar 03

$ Change

430,922.26
3,233,139.52
6,645,423.14
1,066,806.34
11,376,291.26

932,007.00
3,016,600.00
6,033,198.00
1,144,951.00
11,126,756.00

-501,084.74
216,539.52
612,225.14
-78,144.66
249,535.26

1,084,446.64
4,122,283.36
1,322,795.14
0.00
6,529,525.14

-653,524.38
-889,143.84
5,322,628.00
1,066,806.34
4,846,766.12

3,598,675.53
93,745.21
285,063.07
156,515.00
59,370.39
288,842.19
1,371,444.46
1,583,579.85
7,437,235.70

4,292,180.00
231,908.00
522,377.00
200,000.00
139,015.00
417,793.00
1,865,347.00
2,633,595.00
10,302,215.00

-693,504.47
-138,162.79
-237,313.93
-43,485.00
-79,644.61
-128,950.81
-493,902.54
-1,050,015.15
-2,864,979.30

2,841,833.10
140,937.11
609,766.93
311,450.00
19,461.02
255,379.07
750,062.88
835,653.90
5,764,544.01

756,842.43
-47,191.90
-324,703.86
-154,935.00
39,909.37
33,463.12
621,381.58
747,925.95
1,672,691.69

3,939,055.56

824,541.00

3,114,514.56

764,981.13

3,174,074.43

2,000.00
2,000.00

0.00
0.00

2,000.00
2,000.00

0.00
0.00

2,000.00
2,000.00

1,105,303.00
512,544.42
1,617,847.42

1,170,000.00
468,750.00
1,638,750.00

-64,697.00
43,794.42
-20,902.58

2,241,900.00
505,244.89
2,747,144.89

-1,136,597.00
7,299.53
-1,129,297.47

-1,615,847.42

-1,638,750.00

22,902.58

-2,747,144.89

1,131,297.47

2,323,208.14

-814,209.00

3,137,417.14

-1,982,163.76

4,305,371.90
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Southwest Power Pool

Statement of Cash Flows
January through March 2004
Jan - Mar 04
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Customer deposits
Payroll liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(1,950,173.95)
(514,594.91)
2,116,469.81
(670,168.66)
171,728.56
28,693.41
2,610,465.40

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

(720,830.84)
(720,830.84)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

2,323,208.14

1,105,303.00

(5,000,000.00)
(5,000,000.00)

Net cash increase (decrease) for period

(3,110,365.44)

Cash at beginning of period

15,111,086.20

Cash at end of period

12,000,720.76
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Southwest Power Pool

Capital Expenditures
Southwest Power Pool
Capital Expenditures by Project (Summary)

March 2004

Mar 04

Budget

$ Over Budget

Jan-Mar 04

Disaster Recovery Site
Maintenance - Hardware
Maintenance - Servers
Maintenance - Software
Maintenance - Routers and Switches
Market Project
OASIS AFC Granualarity Project

0.00
9,379.19
22,051.58
152,781.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Total Capital Expenditures

184,211.77

Budget

$ Over Budget

153,000.00
43,238.00
15,000.00
187,175.00
0.00
593,000.00
0.00

-153,000.00
-33,858.81
7,051.58
-34,394.00
0.00
-593,000.00
0.00

13,085.42
34,166.11
63,377.01
226,981.00
157,646.30
204,000.00
21,575.00

304,125.00
729,452.00
127,940.00
621,615.00
185,700.00
2,556,260.00
140,000.00

-291,039.58
-695,285.89
-64,562.99
-394,634.00
-28,053.70
-2,352,260.00
-118,425.00

991,413.00

-807,201.23

720,830.84

4,665,092.00

-3,944,261.16
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RELIABILITY COORDINATION
TLR Events per Quarter
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1Q04 v. 1Q03 shows slight increase in number of events.

SCHEDULING
Daily Average T ags Processed
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1Q04 v. 1Q03 shows a slight decrease in the number of tags processed.

TARIFF ADMINISTRATION
Total Requests Submitted
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SPP

40946

2Q03
34197

3Q03
52389

4Q03
26101

1Q04
27844

1Q04 v. 1Q03 shows decrease in total transmission service requests.

% of Total Requests Confirmed
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1Q03
SPP

51%

2Q03
53%

3Q03
36%

4Q03
60%

1Q04
71%

1Q04 v. 1Q03 shows increase in percentage of transmission service requests granted.

QUEUE STATUS REPORT
1Q 2004

Transmission Service Request Queue
Number of requests/studies = 122 / 53, representing 7488 MW
Average processing time for a non-DC tie request System Impact Study is 153 days.
There are 55 requests/16 studies representing 2025 MW that cannot be processed due to
impending DC Tie competition.
During the same period last year, there were 149 requests/82 studies in process, representing
9639 MW. There were 91 requests/ 47 studies representing 7682 MW that could not be
processed due to impending DC Tie competition. Average processing time for a non-DC Tie
request System Impact Study was 66 days.

Generation Interconnection Queue
Number of requests = 50, representing 11,799 MW
o Number of wind requests = 37, representing 6,120 MW
o Number of fossil fuel requests = 13, representing 5,679 MW
Number of requests with Interconnection Agreement pending = 18

During the same period last year, there are 39 requests in process (25 wind; 14 fossil fuel)
representing 12, 575 MW (6,841 MW wind; 5,734 MW fossil fuel). There were 15
Interconnection Agreements pending.

SPP DOCKETS AT FERC
April 2004

DOCKET
NUMBER
ER99-4392

CASE NAME

East Texas Electric
Cooperatives, Inc. v. FERC

ER03-765

Calpine Oneta Power, L.P

EC03-131

Oklahoma Gas & Electric
Company and NRG McLain

RT04-01 and
ER04-48

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

ER04-434

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

DESCRIPTION
SPP filed revisions to its tariff in order to implement network
integration transmission service. ETEC filed for rehearing and
was denied by FERC. ETEC appealed to the Court of Appeals.
The case was dismissed in part and remanded in part to decide
whether ETEC facilities within the SPP region are integrated
with the SPP transmission system.
Calpine Oneta filed a rate schedule intended to allow it to
provide Reactive Power Service to SPP and charge SPP based
on an annual revenue requirement of $2.7M. SPP intervened
asserting that Calpine Oneta had not made an adequate
showing that it is entitled to compensation, and that SPP only
acts as a conduit to collect Reactive Power Service charges
and pass the revenues through to the provider of the service.
OG&E and NRG filed an application for OG&E to acquire
NRG’s ownership interest in the McLain generating facility.
FERC stated that the proposed transaction could have an adverse
effect on competition, and set established hearing procedures.
One of the issues set for hearing is whether a third-party should
perform the disputed tariff functions until SPP is determined to
be a fully independent ISO or RTO.
SPP filed a proposal for recognition as an RTO. By order
issued February 10, the Commission accepted SPP’s proposal
for recognition as an RTO subject to conditions and
compliance filing requirements.
SPP filed revisions to its Tariff in compliance with FERC
Order No. 2003, as well as other related revisions.
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CURRENT STATUS
This docket was remanded back to
FERC by Court of Appeals. SPP is
awaiting FERC action
On January 29, Calpine Oneta
submitted a motion to suspend the
procedural schedule to allow the
parties to try to resolve the issues
through the SPP stakeholder
process. That motion was granted
by order issued February 5.

On January 15, a pre-hearing
conference was held and a
procedural schedule established.

SPP is currently making necessary
changes to its governance, organic
documents, and tariff in order to
comply with the February 10 Order.
FERC accepted the filing and
suspended the proceedings for five
months. SPP will make a
compliance filing on April 19.

SPP DOCKETS AT FERC
April 2004

DOCKET
NUMBER

CASE NAME

EL04-54

Haviland Holdings, Inc. v.
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

Haviland filed a complaint alleging that SPP had violated
Attachment V of the SPP tariff by placing another power
project customer in front of Haviland on SPP’s
interconnection queue.

FERC denied Haviland’s complaint
and found that SPP had complied
with all Attachment V provisions.

ER04-658

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

SPP filed miscellaneous revisions to its Tariff

SPP is awaiting FERC action on
this Docket.

DESCRIPTION
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CURRENT STATUS

SPP PENDING LITIGATION
April 2004

CASE NAME
SPP v WD Energy Services
(Encana)

DESCRIPTION
Encana is a former member that is disputing its amount
due at withdrawal from SPP.
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CURRENT STATUS
Encana has filed a motion to move the case
from federal court to FERC; we have
responded, asserting that this is not FERCjurisdictional. Awaiting court action.

EXECUTIVE SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS
1Q 2004

Speaker
Nick Brown

Event
Energy Bar Association
SPP Participant Funding Symposium
FERC Technical Conference
Accenture IUEC Management Conference

Les Dillahunty

SPP Participant Funding Symposium
FERC Technical Conference

Stacy Duckett

FERC Technical Conference

WITHDRAWAL LETTERS
As of 1Q 2004

American Electric Power
Cleco Corporation
Dynegy Marketing and Trade
El Paso Merchant Energy, L.P.
The Empire District Electric Company
Grand River Dam Authority
Kansas City Power & Light Company
Louisiana Energy & Power Authority
Lafayette Utilities System
Southwestern Power Administration
Westar Energy
Xcel Energy

STAFFING REPORT
1Q 2004

SPP Employee count as of January 1, 2004:

116

1Q New hires:

6

1Q Terminations:
1 – Retiree
1 – Voluntary termination
1 – Involuntary termination

3

SPP Employee count as of March 31, 2004:

119

SPP Employee count as of March 31, 2003:

111

There are 142 full time employees in the 2004 budget.

Southwest Power Pool
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Background
On February 10, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the “Commission”) issued
an order in the SPP RTO filing docket (RT04-1) conditionally approving SPP as an
RTO. During the March 16 Board of Directors meeting, SPP Committees, Working
Groups and Staff were directed to accomplish several initiatives in order to comply with
the conditions in the order, including support to "augment the efforts of Member
companies to perform timely cost-benefit analysis for their respective regulatory bodies".
The Strategic Planning Committee formed a Cost-Benefit Task Force (CBTF) comprised
of the following:
o
o
o
o

SPC Members: Richard Spring, Michael Desselle, Ricky Bittle, Mel Perkins
Other Members and/or Member technical experts: Robin Kittel, Shah Hossain
RSC Representatives: Sam Loudenslager, John Cita, Kelli Leaf, Ken Zimmerman
SPP Staff: Jeff Price

The Cost-Benefit Task Force is responsible for developing the specific scope of the
undertaking, the independent consultant(s) to oversee the study, a contract for those
services, and the development and completion of the study (Scope - Attachment 1).
Analysis
The SPC, with RSC involvement and Staff assistance have reviewed options presented
by the CBTF for an approach including methodology, duration and expense associated
with such a cost-benefit study. This initial review concluded that a coordinated study
would be preferred in lieu of each jurisdictional Member proceeding independently. The
SPC also supports the sharing of the cost of this effort by all SPP Members. The study
will review the cost and benefits of all Members’ participation in SPP and the Imbalance
Energy Market. A Request for Proposal has been developed for distribution to potential
vendors (Draft RFP- Attachment 2).
Recommendation
The SPC recommends that the approach described here be approved for pursuit of a
cost-benefit study, including authorization for this project as an unbudgeted item for
FY2004. The SPC will present an exact expenditure request and a methodology for
inclusion of the RSC for approval following receipt of proposals and selection of a
vendor.

Approved:

Strategic Planning Committee

Action Requested: Approve the recommendation

April 23, 2004

Southwest Power Pool
Cost-Benefit Task Force - Scope Statement
April 13, 2004

Purpose
The purpose of the Cost-Benefit Task Force (CBTF) will be to augment the efforts of
Member companies to perform timely cost-benefit analysis for their respective regulatory
bodies. The CBTF will recommend, provide assistance to, and coordinate with an
independent third party consultant in development of a cost – benefit analysis that will
attempt to consider all costs and benefits of SPP’s transition to an RTO including the
implementation of an imbalance market. The analysis shall estimate the economic
effects on a company by company, area by area, and/or state by state basis as needed.
Scope of Activities
In carrying out its purpose, the CBTF will:

SMeet to review a list of consultants who could coordinate the study and outline
the general scope of the study for the cost benefit analysis with SPP staff
assistance.

SDevelop a vendor selection process and create a statement of tasks to be
performed by the Consultant.

SCoordinate the timeline for the study(s) and the schedule of deliverables.
SDevelop selection criteria, evaluation of proposals, and final recommendation on
the choice of a Consultant.

SDevelop cost and benefit categories to be examined and quantified by the
selected Consultant.

SMeet with the selected Consultant to discuss the appropriate analysis process
and assumptions to use in study.

SAct as liaison between the Consultant and SPP membership and other

concerned parties to respond to questions regarding market design options for
consideration in performing study.

SAct as liaison to the Consultant to respond to questions regarding analysis of

regional and specific company impact evaluations for consideration in performing
study.

SReview and comment on draft report from Consultant.
SReview and comment on Final report for Consultant’s presentation.

Representation
The CBTF will be comprised of no more than fifteen total members representing
segments of SPP’s membership and the Regional State Committee.
Duration
The CBTF will meet as necessary until the Cost-Benefit Study is finalized and filed with
the appropriate regulatory agencies and commissions.
Reporting
The CBTF will report to the Strategic Planning Committee for all activities and guidance.

SPP Request for Proposal draft

Request for Proposal draft
For the Purpose of Conducting a Cost/Benefit study of SPP’s
evolution into a Regional Transmission Organization
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SPP Request for Proposal draft

Section I - Background
Information to Bidders
Purpose
The purpose of this Request For Proposal (RFP) is to invite proposals from identified firms,
consultants, and electric industry researchers for services required by the Southwest Power Pool Inc.
(SPP) in order to conduct a cost/benefit study of SPP’s evolution into a Regional Transmission
Organization (RTO).
The SPP will consider proposals that encompass either part of the study or the entire study as
detailed below. SPP requests that the Bidder should provide as much information as possible in
response to each qualification specified in this RFP. The Bidder must identify any specific
requirements with which it is unwilling or unable to provide.
Schedule
Task
Cost Benefit Task Force Kick-off Meeting

Start Date
4/13/04

Duration

Develop Scope & RFP, select potential vendors,
send out RFP

4/15/04

½ month

Vendor Selection; vendor interview, contract
negotiations, finalize “scope of work”,
execution of the contract

5/1/04

½ month

Develop Assumptions

5/15/04

1 month

Conduct Analysis and draft report

6/15/04

3 months

Review Results

9/15/04

½ month

Final Report Released

9/30/04

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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General Information
The responses will be evaluated according to, but not restricted to, the following criteria:
•

The Bidder’s past experience with Cost/Benefit analyses;

•

Previous experience with RTO Cost/Benefit studies;

•

The Bidder’s demonstration of its capabilities to provide the services required given the
broad areas of technical expertise and periodic reporting related to the performance of the
cost/benefit study. Areas of expertise include, but are not limited to technical knowledge of
energy markets, transmission systems, written and public communication skills, data
gathering expertise, historical relationships with regulatory agencies, development of
economic models;

•

Previous experience with and/or demonstration of technical knowledge of the state of the
transmission system, energy markets, and regulatory environment in the
Midwestern/Southern United States and in the SPP region.

•

The Bidder’s overall responsiveness and consistency in meeting the requirements as
specified in Section III;

•

Demonstration by the Bidder of an ongoing business capability, e.g. financial statements,
etc.;

•

The Bidder’s organizational and technical capabilities to provide services

•

The Bidder’s ability to meet the designated timelines and the reporting dates agreed upon
with SPP;

•

The Bidder’s ability to present the results of the Cost/Benefit study in State Regulatory
Proceeding(s);

•

The compliance of the Bidder’s response to the specification(s);

•

The final report and all supporting work products, including but not limited to documents,
data, and other information used by the Bidder(s) to support the final report, will become
the property of SPP. The Bidder should be prepared to provide the supporting work
products in an organized format suitable to SPP.

Requests for clarification, and responses, on the RFP shall be in writing and forwarded to
jwprice@spp.org according to the timeline above. Responses to written requests will be distributed in
writing to all known recipients of the RFP without identifying the source of the question.
SPP reserves the right to reject any or all Bidder proposals after evaluation.
SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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Section II - Overview
Overview
Regulatory Overview
On October 15, 2003, SPP filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (Commission)
seeking recognition as a Regional Transmission Organization under FERC Order No. 2000. By order
issued on February 10, 2004, the Commission accepted SPP’s proposal for recognition as an RTO
subject to conditions and compliance filing requirements. SPP is committed to meeting the conditions
set out by FERC in the order.
SPP’s corporate offices are located in Little Rock, Arkansas. It began operation in 1941, when 11
companies voluntarily came together to serve the needs of national defense. In June 1968, SPP
became one of the original regional reliability councils of the North American Electric Reliability
Council (NERC). In 1997 SPP began operation as a regional security coordinator, and in 2000 SPP
started to provide transmission services under a regional Open Access Transmission Tariff (SPP
Tariff). SPP has 48 members and serves over 4 million customers in a 400,000 square mile area that
encompasses 17 control areas. The region includes all or portions of the following states: Arkansas,
Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, New Mexico, Oklahoma, and Texas.
SPP’s membership includes investor owned vertically integrated utilities, independent and/or
alternative power producers, power marketers, electric cooperatives, municipal utilities, federal power
agencies, and state power authorities. The investor owned vertically integrated utilities are regulated
by FERC and their respective State Regulatory Commission(s). A number of State Commissions
having jurisdiction over SPP members require regulatory approval to participate in an RTO.
Study Overview
The basic framework of the Study will be a two-phase analysis with Bidder’s having the option of
submitting a proposal on one or both phases. The first phase will incorporate the services that SPP
currently performs for its members, while the second phase will analyze the benefits and costs of
SPP’s implementation of an Energy Imbalance market. The two-phase approach is discussed in
more detail below. The possibility also exists for a Bidder to take on the responsibility of being the
lead editor if more than one consultant is used for the study and report.

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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The two-phase analysis will consist of two distinct analyses and methodologies. First, the study
should identify the benefits and costs to the State-regulated vertically integrated utilities of maintaining
their transmission-owner membership in SPP; therefore these vertically integrated utilities effectively
becoming RTO participants. These benefits and costs would include those that accrue from
consolidated services and functions such as reliability coordination and regional tariff administration,
among others. This part of the study should be accomplished through the development of revenue
requirements for each SPP member as adjusted for known and measurable changes from the various
scenarios to be analyzed to project results of future operations. The second phase of the study should
be an analysis based on a market simulation model of SPP’s anticipated Phase I market
implementation (Energy Imbalance Market).
By using both of these study approaches, potential incremental benefits and costs will be identified,
described and quantified. It is expected that individual companies and/or state regulatory authorities
will use the results from the Study to assist with the performance of their own evaluations or
assessments, which may be required to meet the provisions of respective state laws and regulations.
The Study and its assumptions must be defensible in a number of forums that are likely to follow the
completion of the Study over an extended period of time.
This study may form the basis for cost/benefit studies associated with implementing other phases of
SPP market(s) that may be considered in the future.
SPP Services
SPP services include tariff administration, regional security coordination, regional transmission
modeling and reliability assessment, and management of the Operating Reserve Sharing Pool.1 The
SPP tariff offers customers “one stop shopping” for transmission service across the region. SPP will
process transmission requests, determine available transfer capability, and will schedule submitted
transactions.
The SPP tariff effective February 1, 2000, allows SPP to administer regional network transmission
service, firm and non-firm point-to-point transmission service, and coordinate the procurement of
ancillary services as specified in Order 888. SPP collects Transmission Tariff revenues and
distributes them to members in accordance with the Membership Agreement.
SPP coordinates generation and transmission maintenance and is responsible for the reliable
operation of the transmission grid. It also coordinates emergency response. Members are required
to follow SPP procedures under emergency conditions unless such directives would cause potential
human injury. The RTO would be responsible for grid planning; member transmission owners would
be responsible for construction. Members will be compensated for construction to fullest extent
permitted by FERC or other jurisdictional body.

1

SPP Reserve Sharing Group Participants include entities outside the SPP footprint.

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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The Formation of the Cost Benefit Task Force
When SPP becomes an RTO, some SPP vertically integrated utility members will be required to seek
approval of their respective State Regulatory Commission(s) to transfer control of their transmission
facilities to SPP, and to participate in the RTO. Several State Regulatory Commissions will require
proof of benefit for a change in operational control, and to participate in the RTO and/or the Energy
Imbalance Market.
On April 6, 2004, the SPP Strategic Planning Committee decided that SPP should coordinate a
collective aggregate study rather than members provide individual studies. Because of the use of
a collective approach, the Cost Benefit Task Force was formed for the selection of a vendor(s)
and to provide additional scope and guidance to this process.
SPP Members
A list of SPP members can be found at http://www.spp.org/About_Members.htm. In addition to
members, SPP also has many other participants that are Transmission Customers but are not
members of SPP.
SPP Governing Documents
The following documents define the responsibilities of SPP members and provide direction for SPP
policymaking. If not attached to this document, they can be found at the SPP website at www.spp.org
or at www.ferc.gov
SSPP Articles of Incorporation
SSPP Bylaws
SSPP Standards of Conduct
STariff
SMembership Agreements
SNetwork Operating Agreements
SFERC Order 2000
SOrder 888
The Board of Directors, Strategic Planning Committee and Cost Benefit Task Force minutes may also
be obtained at the SPP website.

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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SPP’ Cost Benefit Task Force’s, and Other Members’ Role During the Study Period
SPP Members and staff, and the State Regulatory Commissions staff members, expect to play a
relatively active role in helping to formulate reasonable base and alternative cases, and in helping to
develop key input assumptions. The Cost/Benefit Task Force (CBTF), which is comprised of State
Regulatory Commission representatives and member representatives, will assist on an ad-hoc basis
in providing the necessary input information and assumptions (e.g., anticipated reliability and
economic transmission expansion projects, revenue requirements analysis, etc), and will answer
questions and provide data on current operations upon request. SPP staff will also provide similar
assistance upon request. Bidders should include in their responses a discussion of the contemplated
relationship between their study team and the SPP Staff and the CBTF.

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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Section III – Cost/Benefit Study
Requirements
Scope of Work
General Parameters
The general parameters of the Cost/Benefit Study are discussed below.
•

Geographic Scope - Southwest Power Pool’s portion of the Eastern Interconnect that is
subject to the SPP Tariff

•

Quantify the known and measurable benefits and costs realized by Vertically Integrated
Utility members of Southwest Power Pool from consolidated services and functions such
as reliability coordination and regional tariff administration, among others. Results
reported will include Operating Company totals, State jurisdictional totals, and Operating
Company subtotals by state jurisdictions.

•

Quantify, where possible, the costs and benefits realized by SPP state jurisdictional
members that may participate in the SPP administered energy imbalance market. In
addition to the state jurisdictional members, SPP will require an evaluation of the costs
and benefits for a “typical” member(s). Results reported will include Operating Company
totals, State jurisdictional totals, and Operating Company subtotals by state jurisdictions.
The analysis will also reflect the results for a “typical” member(s).

•

Conduct a full qualitative analysis of those benefits and costs that cannot be reasonably
quantified.

•

Identify any additional “benefit/costs” which cannot be reasonably quantified or
qualitatively analyzed.

•

The study period will be each year for five years beginning in 2005 and ending in 2009.

•

It is anticipated that scenarios should have the same level of reliability as a base case
analysis. If this cannot be accomplished, reliability differences should be quantified.

Benefits and Costs
The general parameters of the Cost/Benefit Study are discussed below.
•

Benefit/Cost of the existence of regional open transmission access

•

A single SPP-wide OASIS and administration of transmission requests

•

Benefit/Cost of all transmission access under the SPP “non-rate terms and conditions”
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•

Reduction or elimination of rate pancaking within SPP region and the impacts resulting
from regional seams agreements

•

RTO initial capital investment and ongoing operational expenses

•

Regional management of parallel path flows

•

Regional coordination/planning of transmission and generation investment

•

Settlement of intra-SPP inadvertent on the same basis as imbalance

•

Impact on the ability of Companies to exercise market power in an SPP administered
imbalance market

•

Impact of an SPP Market Monitoring function (including an Independent Market Monitor)
to guard against and respond to market power problems

•

Impact of SPP administered operating reserve sharing program

•

Combining the transmission operations of individual entities into a single grid operator
that provides open transmission access throughout the SPP region

•

More efficient utilization of existing transmission plant

•

More efficient generation and commitment and dispatch

•

Potential efficiencies in dispatching the Energy Imbalance market to achieve reduction in
frequency and magnitude of Transmission Loading Relief (TLR) events.

•

Impact on system reliability

•

Other costs or benefits that may be identified

Proposal Requirements
The requirements that should be addressed in the proposal are listed below.
•

Previous experience with conducting cost benefit analysis; specific experience with
conducting RTO Cost/Benefit analysis is preferred;

•

Previous experience with energy markets, transmission systems, and electricity market
modeling;

•

Previous experience and demonstration of technical knowledge of the state of the
transmission system and regulatory environment of the SPP region, and the energy
markets in Midwestern and Southern energy markets;

•

Project management capability;

•

Qualification and commitment of key resources for the study;

•

Description of available models and other analytical tools that can and will be used in
conducting the study;

•

3rd party resources, includes those of SPP and SPP-members, that may be used;

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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•

Clearly articulated assumption and theories;

•

Critical path items;

•

Critical information to be provided by SPP and/or its members;

•

Description of Study structure;

•

Electronic availability of previous similar studies with project schedules;

•

A cost estimate for performing the Cost Benefit Study. If the Bidder submits a proposal
for both phases, a separate cost estimate for each phase should be provided;

•

References.

Reports and Reporting Requirements
The reporting requirements are discussed in detail below.
•

SPP will designate a staff contact responsible for coordinating work performed by the
selected consultant(s) and interaction with SPP Cost Benefit Study Task Force.

•

The selected consultant(s) will be responsive to the requests and questions from the
Cost Benefit Study Task Force

•

All reports developed by the selected consultant(s) in fulfilling the requirements of this
project will be made publicly available.

•

The staff contact will facilitate the development and appropriate distribution of monthly
cost reports

•

The staff contact will provide the liaison function between SPP and its members with the
consultant(s)

•

The selected consultant(s) will report any preliminary findings

•

The selected consultant(s) will submit both a Draft and Final Report to the Cost Benefit
Task Force.

•

The consultant(s) will be required to support its report and findings to SPP committees,
work groups and/or task forces, if requested.

•

The consultant(s) will be expected to support its findings before state regulatory
authorities to meet the provisions of the respective state laws and regulations. This
would be performed under separate contract(s) between the regulated member
companies and the consultant and should not be included in the response to this request
for proposals.

SPP RTO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COST BENEFIT STUDY
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Disclosure of Interest
All Bidders shall make full disclosure in writing at the time of the proposal of any business
relationships with SPP personnel or business relationships with any SPP participants or their
personnel, including but not limited to the following:
•

Ownership of shares or interests of the bidder by any SPP personnel, SPP market
participant or personnel of any SPP market participant.

•

Detail of any directorships in the bidding entity or employment by the bidding entity of
any SPP personnel or personnel of any SPP market participant.

•

Contractual relationships with SPP, SPP employees or any stakeholder in the SPP RTO
market.

By submission of a proposal, the bidder certifies (and in the case of a joint proposal, each party
certifies) that:
•

No relationship exists or will exist during the contract period between the Bidder and SPP
or SPP market participant that interferes with fair competition or is a conflict of interest.

If a Bidder fails to disclose an interest, SPP reserves the right to terminate or cancel a contract,
into which SPP may have been entered with a Bidder.
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Southwest Power Pool
INDEPENDENT MARKET MONITOR SELECTION TASK FORCE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Background
The Chair of the SPP Board of Directors chartered the Independent Market Monitor Selection Task
Force (IMMSTF) in February with the responsibility of evaluating and selecting an Independent
Market Monitor. The membership consisted of three members of the SPP Board of Directors (two
being independent Directors), chair of the Operation Policy Committee (OPC), chair of the Market
Working Group (MWG), and chair of the Market Monitoring and Market Power Mitigation Task Force
(MMMPMTF). The members of the IMMSTF began work on March 8.
Recent Activity
The IMMSTF is comprised of: Jim Stanton (Calpine), Chair, Seth Brown (ETEC), Joshua Martin
(independent Director), Mel Perkins (OG&E), Richard Ross (AEP), Bob Schoenberger
(independent Director); Carl Monroe is the SPP staff member. A Request for Proposal (RFP) had
been prepared and distributed by the MMMPMTF prior to the formation of the IMMSTF (having
been approved by the MWG). Expression of interest was open to any party. The IMMSTF met
twice by teleconference in preparation for the selection process. The RFP was for the employment
of an Independent Market Monitor for both Transmission and Market Operations purposes,
including software systems necessary to perform the evaluation. The RFP contemplates the
operation of a Market Monitoring Unit by SPP Staff, with the IMM providing periodic oversight and
consulting in the development of Market Operations. Expressions of interest were due by January
23; proposals were due by March 29; and vendor finalists presented to the IMMSTF on April 13. A
vendor recommendation was approved by the IMMSTF on April 19.
Analysis
Four vendors submitted bids to SPP in response to the RFP. After review of the bid documents,
the IMMSTF met with three vendors for oral presentations. Following the oral presentations, the
IMMSTF evaluated each vendor. An evaluation matrix was developed to aid in the process. The
matrix appears below with the vendor names masked due to confidentiality concerns.

IMMSTF Recommendation to the BOD

April 27, 2004

IMM Decision Matrix

Vendor A

Vendor B

Boston
Pacific

Depth of resources and specific
expertise, including regulatory
interaction.

3

4

5

Independence/Conflict of Interest

5

3

3

3

4

5

3

4

3

4

4

5

3

5

4

4

4

5

4
3
32

5
3
36

5
3
38

Comply with present and future
SPP requirements of system on a
timely and cost effective basis
Current Monitoring and Mitigation
Analysis Experience and routines
for any industry
Commitment of specific
resources over the life of the
contract
Flexibility to respond to changing
needs of SPP and participants
Meet Market Implementation
Timelines
Current bulk power electric
industry experience
References

1 - Low
5 - High

The recommended vendor’s cost estimate is within the budgeted amount for 2004. Contract
negotiations will result in refining the cost estimate and scope of work.
Recommendation
Based on review of the proposals and evaluation of the vendors, the IMMSTF recommends that
the Board of Directors ratify the selection of Boston Pacific and direct the SPP staff to develop and
execute a contract under the SPP contract approval guidelines for the engagement of the
Independent Market Monitor, absent any material deviation from the proposal.
Approved
Independent Market Monitor Selection Task Force
Action Requested
Approve the recommendation.

-2-

April 19, 2004

SPP Presentation

Operations
Policy
Committee
Mel Perkins, Chair
SPP Board of Directors Meeting
April 27, 2004
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1

Agenda
c Actions
♦ Criteria

Changes
♦ Regional Tariff Changes
c Information
♦ Regional

Tariff WG

\ Order

2003 and 2003A Compliance Filings
Funding
\ Transmission Definition Language
\ Participant

♦ Transmission

WG

\ Regional

Transmission Planning
\ Criteria Violation Mitigation Update
\ Criteria 4 – Change in threshold cutoff for granting
transmission service
♦ Business

Practice WG

\ Changes
3

Agenda
c

cont.

Information cont.
♦

Market WG
\
\
\

♦

Implementation
Footprint of Market
Board Request on Alternate Settlement

Operating Reliability WG
\

Operational Control Whitepaper

♦

Blackout Recommendations Update
♦ Seams Agreement Update
♦ Compliance Update

4

2

Action Items

5

Criteria Changes
c

The OPC recommends the Board
approve changes to Criteria 2
♦

Clarifying language concerning
Adequate Capacity

6

3

Regional Tariff Changes
for RTO Compliance Filing
c

The OPC recommends the
Board of Directors approve the
proposed modifications to:
♦

Part IV of the Tariff including the
addition of new Section 39

♦

Tariff Attachment O

7

Other Regional
Tariff Changes
c

The OPC recommends the Board of
Directors approve:
♦

the proposed modifications to Tariff
Attachment P

♦

the new Tariff Attachment Z and minor
associated Tariff changes

♦

the new Tariff Attachment AA

♦

the proposed modifications to Service
Schedule 4-A
8

4

Informational
Items

9

Operations Policy Committee
Chair - Mel Perkins
Vice Chair - Robin Kittel
Secty - Carl Monroe

Market WG
Chair - Richard Ross
Secty - Richard Dillon

Operating Reliability WG
Chair - Scott Moore
Secty - Robert Rhodes

Regional Tariff WG
Chair - Ricky Bittle
Secty - Pat Bourne

Transmission Assessment WG
Chair - Ronnie Frizzell
Secty - Keith Tynes

Model Development WG
Chair - Brent Wilson
Secty - Harvey Scribner

Critical Infrastructure Protection WG
Chair - Larry Dolci
Secty - Kevin Perry

Operation Model Development WG
Chair - Alan Myers
Secty - Bert Bressers

Operations Data WG
Chair - Mike Sauber
Secty - Scott Aclin

Business Practices WG
Chair - Mike McGeeney
Secty - Lanny Nickell

Operator Training WG
Chair - Allen Klassen
Secty - Katie Duncan

Bandwidth WG
Chair - Robert Shields
Secty - Alex Lau

System Protection & Control WG
Chair - Maurice Robinson
Secty - John Boshears

Generation WG
Chair - Mitch Williams
Secty - Bruce Walkup

Discounting WG
Chair - TBD
Secty - Pat Bourne

5

Regional Tariff WG
c

Transmission definition language
♦

c

Order 2003 and 2003A Compliance Filings
♦

c

OPC narrowly defeated RTWG language, referred
back with request for specific tariff language
changes
Ministerial compliance filed April 19

Participant Funding Symposium
♦

Retained Barker, Dunn & Rossi to provide support
for Participant Funding project

♦

RSC has formed a Participant Funding Task Force

♦

May 5: White Paper Mini-symposium: AEP Center,
Dallas (MWG, RTWG)

♦

June 9: Participant Funding Symposium II, Dallas
Airport Marriott
11

Transmission WG
c

Regional Transmission Planning Update
♦

♦

♦

Currently
\

AC Contingency Analysis 2005 and 2010 summer peak

\

Creating stability runs

\

April 19th and 20th meeting discuss results

\

Contingency Analysis results posted on May 19th

Planning Summit II
\

June 8th at DFW Hyatt

\

Results of contingency analysis to be presented

\

Problems identified and associated mitigation plans

\

Stakeholder feedback

Kansas/Panhandle Sub-Regional Workshop
\

Explore alternatives asap

\

Next step is for interested parties to agree on study
scope, alternatives to evaluate, milestones and
deliverables
12

6

Transmission WG cont.
c

c

2005 Summer mitigation review
♦

Members demonstrate effective mitigation plans
for criteria violations

♦

Next steps are to communicate findings to nonMembers and confirm long term viability of
operator actions

Criteria 4.2.3
♦

Proposal to change cutoff of impacts on facilities
for long-term transmission services requests

♦

TWG meeting April 19th in STL with ORWG and
BPWG

♦

All working groups want Criteria 4 changes
implemented before summer load season
13

Business Practice WG
c

The OPC approved the following
business practices additions or
changes:
♦

Change – Designating new network
resources

♦

Change – Profiling transmission
service

♦

New – Real-time discounting
14

7

Market WG
c

c

Implementation
♦

Increment 1 – May 1; accessible today; SPP Staff
working with customers

♦

Increment 2 – June 1; implementation by an
ORWG TF; delays will not impact the schedule
until August 1

♦

Increment 3 – March 2005; schedule is dependant
on market participants and regulatory approvals

Market Footprint
♦

OPC asked for overview seminar of market

♦

MWG to collect and analyze “special” cases that
impact participation in the market

♦

OPC concurred that MWG proceed with working
definition of all load in footprint under the market
15

Market WG cont.
c

c

Increment 1 Binding Settlement
♦

MWG could not commit resources to a binding
settlement prior to the implementation of
Increment 3

♦

Parties may seek revisions through the RTWG to
the existing Schedule 4 rates on an interim basis

♦

MWG Task Force plans continue discussions on
how to reconcile inadvertent balances at the time
of market opening

Credit Working Group
♦

Group has been meeting to discuss issues raised
by MWG

♦

The group may suggest changing the invoicing
from a monthly cycle to a weekly cycle
16

8

Operating Reliability WG
c

Commonly dispatched zonal
generation method
♦

c

OPC approved the list of AFC Zones

Operational Authority White Paper
♦

Prior to becoming an RTO, SPP to explain
how it asserts “operational authority” as
an RTO

♦

Within 12 months of order, SPP to report
on feasibility of combining control areas

♦

OPC reviewed and endorsed the
Whitepaper for filing (94% approving)
17

Operating Reliability WG
c

Criteria 5, Appendix 7 revisions:
♦

♦

c

cont.

SPP members are required to:
\

concurrently transmit ICCP data to both the SPP
primary and backup sites

\

provide timely updates of system topology changes
and associated system one-line diagrams

\

provide timely updates of model data updates
(facility ratings, SCADA limits, etc.)

\

meet timing requirements for ISN Data Definition
File updates

OPC requested review of timing on updates for
reliability and market uses

Voltage and Reactive Management TF update:
♦

Response to Blackout recommendations

♦

Reviewing SPP Criteria
18

9

NERC/SPP Actions
Blackout Recommendations
c

Recent activity
♦

c

US-Canada task force final report issued on April 5

SPP actions
♦

♦

2 a,b - Reporting policy/standard violations and
directing remedies
\

Compliance Manager to report monthly and quarterly
violations of NERC Polices/Standards and SPP
Criteria

\

SPP working groups to identify those regional
standards for which violations would be reported

2c - Revise compliance templates
\

Compliance Manager rolled out revised compliance
templates
19

NERC/SPP Actions
Blackout Recommendations
♦

3 a,b,c – CA and RC reliability readiness audits
\

♦

♦

ORWG to determine if content from its CA certification
process should be included in NERC’s baseline audit
criteria

4 a,b,c – Vegetation management procedures and
outage reporting
\

Compliance Manager issued an interim procedure,
approved by ORWG, for reporting vegetation-related
line trips

\

Transmission operator entities will report vegetation
outages per procedure

\

OPC to determine if SPP should review and verify
vegetation management procedures

5 a,b – Track implementation of recommendations
\

SPP Staff to review project management tools for
documenting remedial actions
20

10

NERC/SPP Actions
Blackout Recommendations
♦

♦

6 – Improve operator training
\

SPP RC, CAs, and transmission operators to provide 5
days/year of emergency training; 2004 training to be
completed by June 30

\

OTWG developing suggestions for emergency training
to be shared with SPP members

7a, 8b – Evaluate reactive power and voltage control
practices and under-voltage load shedding
\

♦

VRMTF developing regional criteria and practices to
ensure adequate voltage/reactive management and
under-voltage load shedding

8a – Evaluate and change zone 3 relay settings
\

TOs to evaluate zone 3 relay settings on 230kV and
higher lines by September 30, 2004

\

SPCWG to evaluate, with members, reliability impacts of
resetting zone 3 relays
21

NERC/SPP Actions
Blackout Recommendations
♦

11b – Re-evaluate blackstart and restoration
capability
\

♦

12a, 12b – Install time-synchronized
recording devices as needed
\

♦

ORWG is forming a task force to improve
effectiveness of SPP regional black start plan

SPCWG to evaluate existing criteria and
recommend changes necessary to ensure
application of synchronized recording devices in
all power plants and substations

14 – Improve system modeling data
\

ORWG, OMDWG, MDWG to develop criteria and
procedures for validating power flow model data
22

11

SPP Seams Effort
c

MISO – MOU signed, JOA in draft
close to stakeholder review

c

Entergy – MOU in draft, waiting on
ETR for revisions

c

MAPP indicated to MISO they want a
JOA with MISO, SPP, PJM together

c

ERCOT, PNM, EPE and CLECO would
be next

c

SECI and TVA
23

SPP/AECI Coordination
Next Steps
c

c

Continue discussions with AECI
♦

Meeting with Jim Jura

♦

If no commitment is forthcoming from AECI,
OPC would like to draft a letter to NERC

Participate in NERC group dealing with
the AWTTF long-term recommendations
to promote adoption of ATC coordination
policies/standards

24

12

Compliance Program
Report
c

c

2003 Compliance Program Report
♦

SPP 2003 Compliance Program report should be
approved at NERC Compliance Managers meeting on
May 5/6

♦

Operating Template Results - Raw statistics 94% vs.
90% (2002)

♦

Planning Template Results - Raw statistics 81% vs.
81% (2002)

2004 Compliance Rollout Program
♦

c

Conducted rollout session April 7/8 in Tulsa, OK

Revised Compliance Template Implementation
♦

Revised templates will be sent to appropriate SPP
working groups for review to see if the SPP Criteria
needs to be modified to meet any changes
25

Compliance Program
Report
c

Control Area Readiness Assessments
♦

c

16 Control Areas are performing assessments; due
April 9; received 14 as of April 23; working with other
two on specific questions

Cyber Security Standard
♦

All responsible entities, 18 Control Areas and 1
Reliability Coordinator, returned self certification form
on time
♦ Compliance Reporting Overall:
\
\
\

1 Control Area – 100% Compliant
1 Reliability Coordinator – 100% Compliant
5 Control Areas – 100% Non-compliant with varying
levels of mitigation plans
26
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Contact SPP
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

SPP CRITERIA 2 CHANGES
Background
SPP Criteria 2 concerning Capacity Margin has not been revised since May 2000.
Recent Activity
It is not clear as to when required records relating to the criteria are to be provided to SPP Staff. Due to
the voluminous nature of the records, Staff would like them upon request. At its January 15 meeting the
OPC requested that the GWG clarify the criteria concerning adequate capacity. Added language is
needed so as not to inadvertently omit generation and/or loads within the reporting member’s system.
Along with a couple of other minor wording changes, the GWG feels these changes need to be reflected
in Criteria 2.
Conclusion
The proposed changes to Criteria 2 are shown on the attached red-line version.
Recommendation
The OPC recommends the Board of Directors approve changes to Criteria 2.
Approved:

Generation Working Group
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested:

Approve recommendation.

April 7, 2004
April 15, 2004

2.0 CAPACITY MARGIN
This Criteria requires and provides for the sharing of reserve generating capacity as a means of
reducing capacity requirements of each Member and providing reliable electric service to firm
customers due to the equitable purchase, sale and exchange of generating capacity among
Members.

2.1 Definitions
2.1.1 Load Serving Member
A Load Serving Member shall mean any SPP Member assuming legal obligation to provide firm
electric service to a customer or group of customers within SPP.

2.1.2 Firm Power
Firm Power shall mean electric power which is intended to be continuously available to the buyer
even under adverse conditions; i.e., power for which the seller assumes the obligation to provide
capacity (including SPP defined Capacity Margin) and energy. Such power shall meet standards
of reliability and availability as that delivered to native load customers. For purchases and sales,
the contract amount governs regardless of the amount actually delivered at the time of such Load
Serving Member's greatest Net Load. Power purchased shall only be considered to be Firm Power
if Firm Transmission Service is in place to the Load Serving Member for delivery of such power.
Firm Power does not include “financially firm” power.

2.1.3 System Capacity
A Load Serving Member’s System Capacity shall be equal to the capability of its generating
facilities, including its ownership share of jointly owned units, demonstrated under procedures set
forth in SPP Rating of Ggenerating Eequipment rating Ccriteria, adjusted to reflect the purchase
from and/or sale to any other party of generating capacity or SPP defined Operating Reserve,
under any appropriate agreement. For purchases and sales, the contract amount governs
regardless of the amount actually delivered at the time of such Load Serving Member's greatest
Net Load. Capacity purchases shall only be considered if Firm Transmission Service is in place to
the Load Serving Member for delivery of power from such capacity.

Unless reported separately, generating facilities owned by others within the Load Serving
Member’s system that are obligated to furnish firm power to customers within the Load Serving
Member’s system shall also be reported. Absent any bilateral contractual arrangements with the
host Control Area, the host Control Area will not be required to be responsible for capacity and/or

reserve requirements. The reporting of generating facilities owned by others does not constitute
an obligation on the Load Serving Member's part to furnish reserves or back up power for that
generation.

2.1.4 Net Load
The term Net Load for any Load Serving Member shall mean, for any clock hour:
(a) Net generation by the Load Serving Member's facilities; plus
(b) Net receipts into the Load Serving Member's system; minus
(c) Net deliveries out of such Load Serving Member's system

Unless reported separately, the Net Load of other non-Load Serving Members located within the
Load Serving Member’s system shall also be reported. Absent any bilateral contractual
arrangements, the reporting of these loads does not constitute an obligation on the Load Serving
Member's part to furnish reserves, back up power, or incur financial obligations from SPP for that
load.

2.1.5 Capacity Year
Capacity Year shall mean a period of twelve consecutive months beginning on October 1 of each
calendar year. Any period less than a Capacity Year shall be designated as Short Term.

2.1.6 System Peak Responsibility
System Peak Responsibility of a Load Serving Member for any Capacity Year shall mean the Load
Serving Member's greatest Net Load during that Capacity Year plus:
(a) The contract amount of Firm Power sold to others under agreements in effect as of the time of
such Load Serving Member's greatest Net Load which provide for the sale of a specified amount of
Firm Power; and minus
(b) The contract amount of Firm Power purchased from others under agreements in effect as of
the time of such Load Serving Member's greatest Net Load which provide for the purchase of a
specified amount of Firm Power.
In each case, the contract amount governs regardless of the amount actually delivered at the time
of a Load Serving Member's greatest Net Load.

2.1.7 Capacity Margin
Capacity Margin shall mean the amount by which a Load Serving Member's System Capacity
exceeds its System Peak Responsibility.

2.1.8 Percent Capacity Margin
Percent Capacity Margin shall be defined by the formula:
Percent Capacity Margin = (Capacity Margin/System Capacity) x 100

2.1.9 Minimum Required Capacity Margin
Each Load Serving Member’s Minimum Required Capacity Margin shall be twelve percent. If a
Load Serving Member’s System Capacity for a Capacity Year is comprised of at least seventy-five
percent hydro-based generation, then such Load Serving Member’s Minimum Required Capacity
Margin for that Capacity Year shall be nine percent.

2.1.10 System Capacity Responsibility
A Load Serving Member’s System Capacity Responsibility for any Capacity Year shall mean the
sum of that Load Serving Member's System Peak Responsibility and its Minimum Required
Capacity Margin.

2.1.11 Capacity Balance
Capacity Balance shall mean the amount by which a Load Serving Member's System Capacity
exceeds its System Capacity Responsibility.

2.1.12 Firm Transmission Service
Firm Transmission Service is that service defined in any applicable transmission service provider
tariff.

2.2 Capacity Responsibility
(a) Each Capacity Year, each Load Serving Member shall possess System Capacity at least equal
to its System Capacity Responsibility.
(b) Prior to the establishment of its System Peak Responsibility for each Capacity Year, each Load
Serving Member shall provide System Capacity by one or more of the following means:
(i)

Establishing a unit rating consistent with SPP generating equipment rating
Criteria, prior to establishing its System Peak Responsibility;

(ii)

Reducing its System Peak Responsibility by purchase of Firm Power from
any Member or non-Member by separate agreement;

(iii)

Separate written agreement with another Member or a non-Member for
purchase of a specified amount of capacity; and/or

(iv)

Reducing its Net Load.

(c) A Load Serving Member may purchase Short Term capacity to provide a part of its System
Capacity or Short Term Firm Power to reduce its System Peak Responsibility subject to each of the
following restrictions:
(i)

Such Short Term period shall not be less than four consecutive months, and
shall include the day the Load Serving Member establishes its System Peak
Responsibility. Such period shall begin during May 1 to June 1 or
November 1 to December 1;

(ii)

The amount of Short Term capacity or Short Term Firm Power purchased
shall not exceed 25% of the Load Serving Member's System Peak
Responsibility; and

(iii)

The Load Serving Member shall purchase such Short Term Capacity or
Short Term Firm Power prior to the start of the Short Term period.

(d) A Load Serving Member may sell Short Term Capacity or Short Term Firm Power from
resources comprising its Capacity Balance, provided that its System Capacity Responsibility is met.

2.3 Records
Each Load Serving Member, upon request, shall provide accurate and detailed records of
information related to this Criteria to the SPP Staff. Except for System Peak Responsibility, all
other information shall be provided prior to establishing System Peak Responsibility for a Capacity
Year and shall include; validation of System Capacity per SPP Rating of Ggenerating Eequipment
rating Criteria, Capacity purchase and sale contracts, Firm Power purchase and sale contracts,
and firm transmission service agreements. The SPP Staff shall verify information supplied by each
Load Serving Member. Calculations shall be based on the highest peak load of each of the Load
Serving Members during the Capacity Year. All capacity and demand values will be rounded to the
nearest whole MW for purposes of this Criteria. All data submitted to SPP related to this Criteria
shall be considered confidential by the SPP Staff and shall not be released in any form except by
force of law.

2.4 Generation Planning
2.4.1 Design Features
a.

In order to maintain a balanced design of the electric system, excessive concentration of
generating capacity in one unit, at one location, or in one area shall be avoided.

b.

Auxiliary power sources shall be provided in each major generating station to provide for
the safe shutdown of all the units in the event of loss of external power.

c.

In each major load area of SPP, a unit capable of black start shall be provided having the
capability of restarting the other units in the area.

d.

Boiler controls and other essential automation of major generating units shall be designed to withstand voltage dips caused by system short circuits.

2.4.2 Fuel Supply
Assurance of having desired generating capacity depends, in part, on the availability of an
adequate and reliable fuel supply. Where contractual or physical arrangements permit
curtailment or interruption of the normal fuel supply, sufficient quantities of standby fuel shall be
provided. Due to the dependence of hydroelectric plants on seasonal water flows, this factor
shall be taken into consideration when calculating capacity for capacity margin requirements.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Modifications to Tariff Part IV Including Addition of New Section 39
Background and Analysis
On February 10, 2004, in Docket RT04-1-000, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the
Commission) issued an Order Granting RTO Status Subject to Fulfillment of Requirements. As one of its
conditions, the Commission stated:
Consistent with our holding in Opinion No. 453 and related orders, under a functioning
SPP RTO, the SPP transmission owners will no longer be the transmission providers.
SPP will become the sole provider of transmission service, as prescribed by Order No.
2000, and the transmission owners must take all transmission services from SPP. In
implementing the requirement that all load be placed on the tariff, the Commission will be
able to ensure that all service is provided on a non-discriminatory basis by the RTO
transmission provider and, importantly, will also ensure that native load continues to
receive adequate transmission to reliably meet its needs.
In response to the request of the Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) at its March 5, 2004 meeting, Mike
Small provided an analysis of the Order on this issue and developed tariff language consisting of a
modification of Part IV including a new Section 39. . A copy of the analysis was included in background
material and discussion at the Board of Directors Meeting on March 16, 2004.
The SPC at its March 9, 2004 meeting accepted these proposed tariff provisions for inclusion in its Report
to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors at its March 16, 2004 meeting approved the SPC’s
recommendations to comply with conditions in the Order and directed the RTWG to review the tariff
language proposed by counsel to clarify that SPP is the sole transmission provider and make a
recommendation by April 8, 2004 to the OPC for its consideration at its April 14-15, 2004 meeting for
further recommendation to the Board of Directors at its April 27, 2004 meeting. At its April 8, 2004
meeting the RTWG considered and approved the proposed change to Part IV including the new Section
39 as drafted for inclusion in the SPP OATT.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the proposed modifications to Part IV of the Tariff including the addition
of new Section 39 for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

April 8, 2004
April 15, 2004
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IV.

SPECIAL RULES ON USE OF TARIFF

37.

During Transition Period
37.1

Service Not Required for Bundled Customers or Customers Under
Retail Access Programs:

A Transmission Owner shall not be

obligated to take Network Integration Transmission Service or
Point-to-Point Transmission Service from the Transmission Provider
in accordance with this Tariff for (1) bundled retail load not
having a choice of power suppliers or (2) for bundled retail load
it continues to serve that had the right to choose a different
power supplier under a state retail access program or legislation
and that was retail load served by the Transmission Owner prior to
the retail load receiving the right to choose a different
supplier.
37.2

Availability of Network Integration Transmission Service:

All

Transmission Owners shall have the option of electing Network
Integration Transmission Service for retail loads or customers
whether or not such loads or customers have the right to choose a
different power supplier during the Transition Period.
37.3

Unbundled Wholesale:

A Transmission Owner shall be obligated to

take Network Integration Transmission Service or Point-to-Point
Transmission Service from the Transmission Provider in accordance
with this Tariff for any sales to wholesale load the Commission
requires to be unbundled unless such service is arranged by
another entity or is pursuant to a Grandfathered Agreement.
37.4

Grandfathered Transactions:

During the Transition Period,

transmission provided pursuant to Grandfathered Agreements shall
continue to term in accordance with the provisions of the
Grandfathered Agreement rather than under this Tariff unless the
parties agree otherwise.
in Section 1.14a.

Grandfathered Transactions are defined
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After Transition Period
38.1

Applicability to Retail Load Having Choice:

Beginning on the

first day after the end of the Transition Period, this Tariff
shall be applicable to all transmission service over the
Transmission System provided for retail loads having the right to
choose a different power supplier except for deliveries made
pursuant to Grandfathered Agreements.
38.2

Applicability to Retail Load Not Having Choice: Beginning at the
end of the fifth year after the last day of the Transition Period,
the Transmission Owner shall take Network Integration Transmission
Service or Point-To-Point Transmission Service from the
Transmission Provider in accordance with this Tariff for sales to
retail customers not having the right to choose a different power
supplier.

38.3

Grandfathered Agreements: Transmission Service provided pursuant
to Grandfathered Agreements shall continue to term in accordance
with the provisions of the Grandfathered Agreements rather than
under this Tariff unless the parties agree otherwise.
Grandfathered Agreements are defined in Section 1.14a.

39.

Applicability of Non-Rate Terms and Conditions
39.1

Bundled Retail and Grandfathered Load:

Notwithstanding Sections

37 and 38 of this Tariff, Each Transmission Owner (which is not
otherwise taking Network Integration Transmission Service ) is
subject to the non-rate terms and conditions of this Tariff for:
(1)

its

bundled

retail

load

not

having

a

choice

of

power

suppliers; (2) its bundled retail load that had the right to
choose a different power supplier under a state retail access
program or legislation and that was retail load served by the
Transmission Owner prior to the retail load receiving the right to
choose

a

different

supplier;

Grandfathered Agreements.

and

(3)

its

bundled

load

under

For purposes of this provision the non-

rate terms and conditions are those that would apply to Network
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Customers except for (1) Section 28 other than the provision in
Section 28.1 requiring Ancillary Services pursuant to Section 3
and Section 28.2; (2) Section 29 other than Sections 29.3 and
29.4; and (3) Sections 34.1, 34.2 and 34.3.

In addition, unless a

Transmission Owner executes a Service Agreement under this Part
III,

it

will

not

be

Transmission Service.

considered

as

taking

Network

Integration

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Modifications to Tariff Attachment O
Background and Analysis
On February 10, 2004, in Docket RT04-1-000, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the
Commission) issued an Order Granting RTO Status Subject to Fulfillment of Requirements. As one of its
conditions, the Commission stated:
We also agree with commenters that Attachment O of SPP’s OATT does not provide
SPP with the authority to independently oversee the regional transmission plan and
solely determine the priority of transmission planning projects that address reliability and
economic needs. For example, while TOs can perform their own transmission planning
studies, SPP’s OATT does not provide that SPP should independently review and
conduct such studies. Attachment O suggests that SPP would serve largely as a
consolidator and reviewer of plans that others conduct. This role, as described in
Attachment O, concerning SPP’s authority to plan transmission is inconsistent with the
revised Membership Agreement. Consistent with Order No. 2000, the RTO must
independently decide which projects should be included and how they should be
prioritized. We will require SPP to modify its Attachment O to make it consistent with the
revised Membership Agreement with respect to the SPP’s and the TOs’ role in the
transmission planning process. The TOs may perform studies and evaluate changes to
their transmission systems; however, SPP should provide independent oversight of the
individual TO’s studies to assure that any proposed changes would not impede SPP’s
ability to provide efficient, reliable and non-discriminatory transmission service.
Accordingly, we direct SPP to file changes to Attachment O of its OATT to reflect SPP’s
authority to plan transmission, consistent with the discussion above.
In response to the order, SPP Staff modified Attachment O and presented a draft to the Strategic
Planning Committee (SPC) for discussion. The Regional Tariff Working Group (RTWG) and the
Transmission Working Group (TWG) were directed to review the draft and finalize for filing. Staff was
directed to provide another draft for consideration addressing Mike Small’s concerns.
The SPC included the then current draft of Attachment O in its March 16, 2004 Report to the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors at its March 16, 2004 meeting approved the SPC’s recommendations
to comply with conditions in the Order including a review of the Attachment O by the RTWG and OPC.
At its March 24, 2004 meeting the TWG considered and approved the proposed Attachment O with
modifications for inclusion in the SPP OATT. At its April 8, 2004 meeting the RTWG considered and
approved the proposed Attachment O, as approved by the TWG, for inclusion in the SPP OATT.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the proposed modifications to Tariff Attachment O for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

April 8, 2004
April 15, 2004
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ATTACHMENT O
COORDINATED TRANSMISSION PLANNING AND EXPANSION
PROCEDURES

The highly interconnected nature of the Transmission System, and the associated high
degree of interdependence of the facilities of the Transmission Owners, requires
coordination of transmission planning efforts. These Procedures describecoordination
requirements for transmission planning within the SPP Region.and expansion procedures
for the SPP Transmission System. Transmission Owners are obligated to build facilities
subject to regulatory approval under the provisions of this Tariff. The Transmission
Provider will not build or own transmission facilities. These procedures neither obligate
the Transmission Provider nor Transmission Owners to build or own facilities within
another Transmission Owner’s area where a limit may exist. Transmission Owners may
at any time voluntarily form associations and partnerships between Members or with nonMembers to jointly construct and finance new transmission facilities provided such
projects are subject to the assessment process of these Procedures.

1.0 Planning Criteria
The individual planning criteria of each Transmission Owner shall be the basis for
determining whether a violation of criteria exists and when a need for new facilities
should be considered. This planning criteria shall, at a minimum, conform to SPP
Criteria and NERC Planning Standards. Transmission Owners shall submit their
transmission planning criteria to the Transmission Provider. This criteria may be

DraftDRAFT
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modified at any time provided that, if the criteria is made more stringent, the increased
requirements shall not apply retroactively to transmission planning studies previously
completed nor studies already underway by SPP’sthe Transmission Assessment Working
Group (TAWG).Provider.

2.0 Planning and Assessment Studies
The Transmission Provider shall independently perform regional transmission planning
studies. These studies shall assess the reliability and economic operation of the SPP
Transmission System. Transmission planning studies shallmay also be performed by
individual Transmission Owners. Members shall contact the TAWGTransmission
Provider whenever new facilities that impact interconnected operation are in the
conceptual planning stage so that the optimal integration of any new facilities and
potentially benefiting parties can be identified. The Transmission Provider’s operating
personnel shall periodically inform the TAWGTransmission Owners of identified
operating constraints that should be addressed in future studies. Seasonal transmission
assessments shall be performed by the TAWG.Transmission Provider. These planning
studies and seasonal assessments are for purposes of identifying any planning criteria
violations that may exist. Transmission Owners shall submit their five-year transmission
construction plans to the Transmission Provider. The initial plans, existing as of January
1, 1999, shall be considered grandfathered and shall not be subject to review or approval
by the TAWG.

DraftDRAFT
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In the event the assessment process identifies a violation, the violation shall be directed to
the associated Transmission Owner. The responsible Transmission Owner shall respond
by explaining why the violation is not valid or by identifying alterations in its
transmission plan which correct the criteria violation. The Transmission Owner with an
identified limit shall be responsible for performing studies to determine alternatives that
remove the limit. If corrective action causes regional impacts and is therefore subject to
cost sharing, the Transmission Provider’s Staff shall participate in these studies if
requested by the Transmission Owner or another Member.

Recommendations developed by the responsible Transmission Owner to mitigate an
identified violation shall be presented for review and approval by the
TAWG.Transmission Provider. This review shall evaluate study results for negative
impacts on the transmission systems of other Members. If such negative impacts are
found, the TAWG,Transmission Provider, the impacted Member and the Transmission
Owner shall participate in a joint effort to modify the recommendation to the satisfaction
of all involved Members. If negative impacts are not found, the TAWGTransmission
Provider shall accept the recommendation. If the TAWGTransmission Provider finds the
study incomplete, the Transmission Owner shall make further analysis to the satisfaction
of the TAWG.Transmission Provider. Once the recommendation is shown to address the
violation and any negative impacts have been mitigated to the extent practicable, the
TAWGTransmission Provider shall accept the recommendation. The Transmission
Provider shall independently make the final determination in the process, subject to the
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Dispute Resolution Procedures and subject to review by the FERC or state regulatory
authorities where appropriate.

3.0 Need for New Facilities
Undue limitation on the maintenance of the Transmission System and the provision of
firm transmission service shall be deemed to create a need for new or upgraded facilities.
Either situation shall require submittal of a transmission plan for review by the
TAWGTransmission Provider to resolve the issue and may result in cost sharing among
the entities that benefit from facility additions or improvements. This review can be
initiated by any Member requesting firm transmission service under any applicable tariff.
This review can also be initiated by any SPP organizational group as a result of its
performance of operational assessments.

If the Transmission Owner with an identified limit is unable to determine alternatives in a
timely manner, the TAWGTransmission Provider may establish a task force to determine
appropriate options and make a recommendation. Such task force roster shall include
representation from the Member with the limiting facility and Members with
transmission service or facilities that might be affected by the limiting facility or
corrections. The task force shall provide a recommendation, along with options
considered to the TAWGTransmission Provider for a review of impacts. Based on its
review of the task force recommendations, the TAWGTransmission Provider shall
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independently prepare a proposal for consideration by the SPP Board of Directors to
direct the appropriate Transmission Owners to begin implementation of the project.

4.0 Construction
a. Each Transmission Owner shall use due diligence to construct transmission facilities
as directed by the SPP Board of Directors subject to such siting, permitting, and
environmental constraints as may be imposed by state, local and federal laws and
regulations, and subject to the receipt of any necessary federal or state regulatory
approvals. Such construction shall be performed in accordance with Good Utility
Practice, applicable SPP Criteria, industry standards, each Transmission Owner’s specific
reliability requirements and operating guidelines (to the extent these are not inconsistent
with other requirements), and in accordance with all applicable requirements of federal or
state regulatory authorities. Each Transmission Owner shall be fully compensated to the
greatest extent permitted by The Commission, for the costs of construction undertaken by
such Transmission Owner in accordance with this Tariff.

b. After a new transmission project has been approved, the Transmission Provider will
direct the appropriate Transmission Owners to begin implementation of the project. If
the project forms a connection between facilities of a single Transmission Owner, that
Owner will be designated to provide the new facilities. If the project forms a connection
between facilities owned by two different Transmission Owners or between a new facility
and the facilities of a Transmission Owner, both entities will be designated to provide the
new facilities. The two entities will agree between themselves how much of the project

DraftDRAFT
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will be provided by each entity. If agreement cannot be reached, the Transmission
Provider will facilitate the ownership determination process.

c. A designated provider for a project can elect to arrange for another entity or another
existing Transmission Owner to build and/or own the project in their place. If a
designated provider or providers do not or cannot agree to implement the project in a
timely manner, the Transmission Provider will solicit and evaluate proposals for the
project from other entities and select a replacement designated provider.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Modifications to Attachment P

Recent Activity
The Business Practices Working Group (BPWG) proposed to the RTWG approval of modifications to
SPP’s Tariff Attachment P, the timing table for reservation and scheduling of service under the SPP Tariff.
Background and Analysis
At its February 5, 2004 meeting, the RTWG approved a modification to SPP’s Tariff Attachment P. The
RTWG concurred with the BPWG finding that it is appropriate to change the Non-Firm hourly “No Later
Than” Energy Scheduling deadline from 1500 day prior to 20 minutes prior to the hour. The change
facilitates conduct of the Non-Firm hourly market.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the proposed modifications to Tariff Attachment P for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

February 5, 2004
April 15, 2004
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ATTACHMENT P

Transmission Requests 2/

Transmission

Term

Service Type

Long Term

1 Year or More

Determine

System

SPP

Capacity

Impact

Available

No

No

Response to

Later

Earlier

Application

Than

Than

60 Days Prior

or

Study

(From Date of Customer

Energy Scheduling 2/

Changes

Customer
Response 1/

Commitment)

15 days

30 days

60 days

15 days

No

No

Later

Later

Than

Than

1200 day prior

Firm

to hour

Short-Term

More than

31 days

120 days

Firm

1 month (monthly)

prior

prior

Short-Term

1 mo (monthly)

8 days

90 days

prior

prior

8 days

60 days

prior

prior

Firm

Short-Term

Firm

More than 1 wk up

to 1 month

24 hrs

24 hrs

24 hrs

30 days

30 days

30 days

60 days

60 days

60 days

4 days

4 days

48 hrs

1200 day

20 mins prior

prior

to hour

1200 day

20 mins prior

prior

to hour

1200 day

20 mins prior

prior

to hour

(weekly)

Issued by:
Issued on:

20 mins prior
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Transmission Requests 2/

Transmission

Term

Service Type

Capacity

Impact

Available

Response to

Later

Earlier

Application

Than

Than

2 days

30 days

Firm

(weekly)

prior

prior

Short-Term

More than 1 day

2 days

14 days

Firm

up to 1 wk (daily)

prior

prior

Short-Term

1 Day

1000 day

3 days prior 4/

Firm

(daily)

prior

Issued on:

SPP
No

1 wk

Issued by:

System

No

Short-Term

Non-Firm

Determine

1 month or greater

3 days

60 days

(monthly)

prior

prior

or

Study

(From Date of Customer

Energy Scheduling 2/

Changes

Customer
Response

1/

Commitment)

24 hrs

24 hrs

24 hrs

N/A

30 days

30 days

queued > 24 hrs to

60 days

60 days

60 days

48 hrs

24 hrs

queued > 24 hrs

start: 30 days

to start: 24 hrs

queued < 24 hrs to

queued < 24 hrs

start: best effort

to start: 2 hrs

2 days

N/A

24 hrs

No

No

Later

Later

Than

Than

1200 day

20 mins prior

prior

to hour

1200 day

20 mins prior

prior

to hour

1200 day prior

20 mins prior to

hour

1500 day

20 mins

prior

prior to hour
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Transmission Requests 2/

Transmission

Term

Service Type

Non-Firm

Non-Firm

Non-Firm

Determine

System

SPP

Capacity

Impact

Available

No

No

Response to

Later

Earlier

Application

Than

Than

1 wk up to 1 mo

2 days

14 days

(weekly)

prior

prior

1 day up to

1200 day

2 days

1 wk (daily)

prior

prior 4/

1 hour up to

30 Mins prior

1200 day

or

Study

(From Date of Customer

Energy Scheduling 2/

Changes

Customer
Response

1/

Commitment)

N/A

N/A

N/A

4 hrs

30 mins

Queued > 1 hr

N/A

N/A

N/A

24 hrs

2 hrs

No

No

Later

Later

Than

Than

1500 day

20 mins

prior

prior to hour

1500 day

20 mins

prior

prior to hour

20 mins

Queued day
1500 day

1 day (hourly)

prior

prior to start:

prior to hour

prior: 30 mins
prior

30 mins
20 mins
Queued < 1 hr

Queued current

prior to start:

day: 5 min /5

prior to hour

best effort

Issued by:
Issued on:
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New

Transmission Requests 2/

Transmission

Term

Service Type

Next-Hour Market

next-hour

System

SPP

Capacity

Impact

Available

No

No

Response to

Later

Earlier

Application

Than

Than

20 mins prior3/

(hourly)

1/

Determine

1 hour

or

Study

(From Date of Customer

Energy Scheduling 2/

Changes

Customer
Response 1/

Commitment)

N/A

Best effort

prior3/

N/A

N/A 3/

No

No

Later

Later

Than

Than

20 mins prior to

20 mins prior to

hour3/

hour3/

For transactions not covered by an umbrella service agreement, the customer response must be execution of a service agreement or a request that an unexecuted service agreement be filed with the Commission pursuant to Section 15.3 of the
Tariff. For transactions under an umbrella service agreement, the above times are the deadlines by which time the customer must notify The Transmission Provider of its acceptance of the offer to provide transmission.

2/

The Transmission Provider, in its discretion exercised on a non-discriminatory basis, may waive any of these requirements.

3/

All Next-Hour Market requests are submitted on schedule request and are deemed to be pre-confirmed.

4/

Excluding Sundays and NERC Holidays.

5/

Or 2300 of previous day if for first hour of day.

6/

Non-firm schedules will be accepted after 1500 day prior if there are no new reliability risks identified since the reservation was accepted. This includes but is not limited to NERC TLR in effect

Issued by:
Issued on:

L. Patrick Bourne, Manager,
Transmission and Regulatory Policy
Effective:
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Addition of New Attachment Z
Background and Analysis
At its March 4, 2004 meeting, the RTWG approved the work of its queue improvement task force
regarding the development of the new Attachment Z to the SPP Tariff and other tariff changes necessary
to accommodate the inclusion of the new attachment. This new attachment provides for the aggregation
of transmission service requests for evaluation.
Under the current pro-forma transmission tariff, SPP processes all requests on a first-come first-served
basis. This process lends itself well to short-term requests for which ATC is posted and which can be
quickly evaluated. However, long-term requests require more extensive study to determine if the
transmission system is capable of providing the requested service and subsequent renewals. This has
led to a backlog of requests that cannot be responded to within the desired 60-day time frame. The
current process also has the first request in the queue pay for its upgrades, which may increase the cost
of service substantially pricing many requests out of the market.
SPP proposes to implement a process that allows aggregation of multiple requests received during a
specified time frame into a single study. This will allow SPP to process multiple requests together
improving the response time for long-term requests. Additionally, cost sharing of upgrades will be
implemented to distribute the costs of upgrades that provide benefit to multiple requests.
The proposed aggregate transmission study is handled through an open season process. The open
season will be 4 months in duration. All requests that are in the queue at the end of the open season and
sign an aggregate system impact study agreement will be included in the aggregate impact study.
The aggregate impact study will evaluate all of the requested transmission service simultaneously. SPP
will evaluate the upgrades required and determine if a regional solution would provide a cost reduction.
Once the final list of required upgrades is determined, SPP shall estimate the total cost and allocation of
such costs for the upgrades. This will provide customers will the detailed impacts and costs of their
transmission service request. Any constraint that is contractually limited, such as the DC ties, shall be
allocated on a first-come first-served basis.
The aggregate impact study shall provide the transmission customers who remain in the queue after the
impact study with a statement of the necessary costs and lead-time for construction of upgrades. It shall
specify a final cost allocation and estimated cost of service for each request after the optimal set of
solutions has been determined. Cost responsibility for each upgrade will be allocated to customers based
on the pro-rata impact of each customer’s reservation on the overloaded facility under summer peaking
conditions for all summer seasons within the term of each request. Only flows in the overloaded direction
will be considered. The revenue requirements associated with each upgrade, as allocated, will be
calculated on a levelized monthly basis, consistent with SPP’s current pricing policy.
Any charges paid by a customer in excess of the transmission service base rate as compensation for the
revenue requirements for allocated network upgrades, shall be recovered by such customer from future
transmission service revenues until the customer has been fully reimbursed with interest. For each new
point-to-point reservation made after the facility upgrade is completed, the customer shall receive a
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portion of the transmission service charge equal to the positive response factor of the upgraded facility
calculated on a monthly basis.
Transmission Owners shall have the right of first refusal to upgrade the facility. If they exercise this right,
the cost of the upgrade is removed from the transmission customer charges. The Transmission Owner
shall be allowed to recover the costs per the cost recovery mechanism otherwise applicable to customers
set out in Section 8 of Attachment Z.
When facilities being paid for pursuant to the provisions of the proposed Attachment Z are rolled into the
revenue requirement used for the development of generally applicable transmission service rates, the
amount rolled in shall be the remaining balance of total revenue requirements, less amounts refunded to
customers less the total cost of the service pursuant to applicable base rates. All customer and
Transmission Owners who have a remaining balance subject to cost recovery shall be paid in full.
Changes to the SPP Tariff are proposed to include several other minor changes to allow for the
aggregation of requests and cost sharing.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the proposed modifications to Tariff Attachment Z and minor associated
other Tariff changes for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

March 4, 2004
April 15, 2004

ATTACHMENT Z
Aggregate Transmission Service Study Procedures
1.

Introduction
This attachment describes the process used to evaluate long-term transmission service

requests using an Aggregate Transmission Service Study process. The Transmission Provider
will combine all long-term point-to-point and long-term designated network resource requests
received during a specified period of time into a single Aggregate Transmission Service Study.
Using this aggregate study process, SPP will combine all requests received during an open
season to conclude an optimal expansion of the transmission system that provides the necessary
ATC to accommodate all such requests at the minimum total cost. The cost of transmission
upgrades required to reliably provide all of the requested service will be allocated among the
requests in proportion to the impacts of each request on each upgrade component.

2.

Open Season

The Aggregate Transmission Service Study process commences with the initiation of an open
season. The open season will be 4 months in duration. During that period, customers may make
requests for long-term transmission service that starts no earlier than 4 months after the close of
the season. Customers may submit and withdraw requests during the open season without any
obligation. At the close of the open season, the Aggregate System Impact Study (ASIS) will
include only queued requests for which Aggregate System Impact Study Agreements (ASISAs)
have been executed. At the close of the open season, customers will have 15 days to execute
such ASISAs per Section 19.

1

Existing long-term firm service Customers who desire to exercise a reservation priority under
Section 2.2 shall do so pursuant to the terms of Section 2.2 and shall not be included in the
aggregate study.

3.

Aggregate Impact Study

At the close of the Open Season, all transmission service requests subject to an ASISA will be
included in the ASIS. This study shall be done in accordance with Section 19. The power flow
models shall be developed for each season for the period from the earliest start of service to the
latest end of service for the applicable requests. The models will include all other applicable
existing reservations having equal or greater queue priority including prospective renewals of
existing service having a reservation priority pursuant to Section 2.2. System constraints will be
identified and appropriate upgrades determined during the ASIS. The Transmission Provider
shall determine the upgrades required to reliably provide all of the requested service. SPP shall
also perform a regional review of the required upgrades to determine if alternative solutions
would reduce overall cost to customers. The Transmission Provider shall estimate the total cost
and the allocation of such costs of these upgrades to each request impacting each constraint in
conjunction with completion of the ASIS and in accordance with Section 5 of this Attachment Z.

SPP shall recognize constraints due to contractually limited facilities and allocate available
capacity on a first come first served basis on the contractual constraint only. The cost of each
component of all other upgrades in SPP shall be allocated on the basis of pro-rata MW impact
described in Section 5, Cost Allocation, of this Attachment Z.

2

Within the ASIS the Transmission Provider will identify the overloaded facilities limiting the
availability of the requested aggregate transmission service and the upgrades required to provide
this service. It will also provide an estimate of the cost of those upgrades. The assignment of
upgrade costs to each reservation will be provided to enable customers to estimate their costs.
Upon receipt of the Impact Study, customers will have 15 days to execute an Aggregate
Facilities Study Agreement (AFSA) per Section 19.

4.

Aggregate Facilities Study

The Transmission Provider shall perform an Aggregate Facilities Study including the requests of
all customers who have executed an Aggregate Facilities Study Agreement (AFSA). The first
phase of the facilities study process shall consist of a revision of the impact study to reflect the
withdrawal of requests for which an AFSA was not executed, if any. The Aggregate Facilities
Study shall be done in accordance with Section 19 of the Tariff. The Transmission Provider, in
conjunction with the applicable Transmission Owners, shall determine the necessary cost and
lead-time for construction of each upgrade and the estimated cost of service for each request.
The Transmission Provider, in conjunction with the applicable Transmission Owners, shall
determine the optimal set of solutions to reduce the overall costs for the study group and reliably
provide the requested service in a timely manner. The Impact Study results shall be used to
assign pro-rata MW impact allocation of upgrades to customers.

Pursuant to Section 7, Transmission Owner Upgrades, of this Attachment Z, Transmission
Owners shall have the right of first refusal to use the cost recovery provisions of Section 8 to pay
for the facilities they construct, rather than allocating such costs to customers.

3

After concluding the final cost allocations to each reservation in the aggregate group, the
Transmission Provider shall determine the levelized monthly revenue requirement associated
with the transmission service requested by each customer in the aggregate group. This levelized
monthly revenue requirement is determined by calculating the present worth of the revenue
requirements associated with the upgrades as allocated to each customer in the aggregate group
and then assigning the appropriate monthly charge for each customer in the aggregate group for
each respective reservation. For Point-to-Point Service, this charge will be compared to the
charge applicable for each request under the base transmission service rates of Schedule 7,
Section 1, and each customer will be required to pay the higher of the total monthly base rate
charges or the monthly revenue requirement associated with the facility upgrades. For Network
Integration Service this charge will be applied as a direct assignment charge pursuant to
Schedule 9, Section 4 and each customer will be required to pay the monthly revenue
requirement associated with the facility upgrades in addition to the total monthly base rate
charges applicable under Schedule 9, Section 1.

5

Cost Allocation

For the purpose of determining the cost responsibility for each transmission service request, all
upgrades required to provide transmission service for all transmission service reservations
included in an Aggregate Facility Study shall be included in an Aggregate Cost Allocation
Assessment.
The cost of each transmission upgrade component will be allocated to each customer in the
aggregation group on a pro-rata impact basis. The pro-rata allocation shall be determined by
averaging the increased (positive) flow impact on the overloaded facility during the summer
seasons within the term of each reservation. The cost of an upgrade will be allocated to all
4

customers in the aggregate group whose reservation period begins after or includes the
commercial operation date of a facility upgrade. If an upgrade is first required during a season
after completion of service, no cost would be assigned to the customer.
6

Financial Calculation of Upgrade Costs:

First, SPP shall review all upgrades and determine the earliest date that each upgrade is required.
This date is considered the end of construction (EOC) date for each upgrade. All requests that
have a positive impact on the upgrade and for which the service has not been completed prior to
the EOC for such upgrade, shall be allocated costs for the upgrade. These requests shall be
reviewed and the request that ends at the latest point in time (End of Term: EOT), shall define
the amortization period for the facility

7

Transmission Owner Upgrades:

SPP Transmission Owners shall each have the right of first refusal to obtain all rights and
responsibilities afforded to customers under this Attachment Z by assuming the cost
responsibility for any or all of the upgrades to their facilities or new facilities which it constructs
to provide transmission service pursuant to this Attachment Z. If a Transmission Owner elects to
exercise this right of first refusal, the cost of the upgrade shall not be allocated to the requests in
the aggregate group. SPP shall notify each Transmission Owner of the upgrades required and
provide the Transmission Owner the opportunity to exercise its right of first refusal.

8

Cost Recovery:
Any charges paid by a customer in excess of the transmission service base rate, in

compensation for the revenue requirements for allocated upgrades shall be recovered by such
customer from future transmission service revenues until the customer has been fully
5

compensated. Such amount shall be recovered, with interest, from new service that increases
loading on the new facility in the direction of the initial overload. For each new point-to-point
reservation made after the facility upgrade is completed (EOC date), the customer shall receive a
portion of the transmission service charge equal to the positive response factor calculated on a
monthly basis. This allocation from new service shall continue until the customer has been fully
compensated for all charges paid in excess of the transmission service base rate.

9

Future Roll-In:

When facilities being paid for pursuant to the provisions of this Attachment Z are rolled into the
revenue requirements used for the development of generally applicable transmission service
rates, the amount rolled in shall be the remaining balance of total revenue requirements, less
amounts refunded to customers less the total cost of the service pursuant to applicable base rates.
All customers and Transmission Owners, who have upgraded facilities and have remaining
balances subject to cost recovery pursuant to Section 8, Cost Recovery, of this Attachment Z,
shall be paid in full. The customer shall continue to pay the charges specified in the customer’s
transmission service agreement for the transmission service initially reserved.

6
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COMMON SERVICE PROVISIONS

Definitions
1.1

Aggregate Transmission Study: Transmission system impact and
facilities studies that aggregate Transmission Service requests
received over a 120-day period.

These requests are evaluated

simultaneously to provide for optimization of transmission
expansion.
1.1a

Ancillary Services:

Those services that are necessary to support

the transmission of capacity and energy from resources to loads
while maintaining reliable operation of the Transmission
Provider's and Transmission Owner's(s) Transmission System in
accordance with Good Utility Practice.
1.2

Annual Transmission Cost:

The total annual cost of the

Transmission System for purposes of Network Integration
Transmission Service shall be the amount specified in Attachment H
until amended by the Transmission Provider or modified by the
Commission.
1.3

Application:

A request by an Eligible Customer for transmission

service pursuant to the provisions of the Tariff.
1.3a

Attachment Facilities: Facilities that serve to interconnect a
generating unit with a Transmission Owner’s transmission
facilities.

1.4

Commission:

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

1.5

Completed Application:

An Application that satisfies all of the

information and other requirements of the Tariff, including any
required deposit.
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POINT-TO-POINT TRANSMISSION SERVICE

Preamble
The Transmission Provider will provide Firm and Non-Firm Point-To-Point
Transmission Service pursuant to the applicable terms and conditions of this
Tariff. Point-To-Point Transmission Service is for the receipt of capacity and
energy at designated Point(s) of Receipt and the transmission of such capacity
and energy to designated Point(s) of Delivery.
13

Nature of Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service
13.1

Term:

The minimum term of Firm Point-To-Point Transmission

Service shall be one day and the maximum term shall be specified
in the Service Agreement.
13.2

Reservation Priority:

Long-Term Firm Point-To-Point Transmission

Service shall be available based on the results of an aggregate study.
Requests will be aggregated during a 120- day open season and all PointTo-Point service requests and designated network resource requests
received during that time shall be deemed received at the same time if
they are not using a contractually limited interface (e.g. a DC-Tie).
For contractually limited interfaces, the first-come, first-served
principles shall apply for the purpose of allocating limited interface
capacity only.

The allocation of remaining ATC on contractually limited

interfaces shall occur as if all requests are received at the same time.
Reservations for Short-Term Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service
will be conditional based upon the length of the requested transaction
and relative impact on available transmission capability.

If the

Transmission System becomes oversubscribed, requests for longer term
service may preempt
17.1

Application:

A request for Firm Point-To-Point Transmission

Service for periods of one year or longer must contain a written
Application to:

Southwest Power Pool, 415 North McKinley, 8700

Plaza West, Little Rock, AR 72205-3020, at least sixty (60) days
in advance of the calendar month in which service is to commence
for renewals under Section 2.2 and for new long-term service no
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earlier than 120 days in advance of the closing date of the open
season during which the customer is submitting the new request.
The Transmission Provider will consider requests for such firm
service on shorter notice when feasible.

Requests for firm

service for periods of less than one year shall be subject to
expedited procedures that shall be negotiated between the Parties
within the time constraints provided in Section 17.5.

All Firm

Point-To-Point Transmission Service requests should be submitted
by entering the information listed in Section 17.2 on the
Transmission Provider's OASIS.
17.1a Time Requirements:

Attachment P lists the time requirements

applicable to when the requests must be made, the evaluation of
the requests, and the Transmission Customer responses.

Requests

for long-term service received during any specified open season
shall be processed no later than 15 days after the close of the
open season.
17.2

Completed Application:

A Completed Application shall provide all

of the information included in 18 CFR § 2.20 including but not
limited to the following:
(i)

The identity, address, telephone number and facsimile number
of the entity requesting service;
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Study Agreement and return it to the Transmission Provider within
fifteen (15) days.

If the Eligible Customer elects not to execute

the System Impact Study Agreement, its Application shall be deemed
withdrawn and its deposit, pursuant to Section 17.3, shall be
returned with interest.
19.2

System Impact Study Agreement and Cost Reimbursement:
(i)

The System Impact Study Agreement will clearly specify the
Transmission Provider's estimate of the actual cost, and
time for completion of the System Impact Study.
shall not exceed the actual cost of the study.

The charge
For

Aggregate Transmission Service Study Procedures, the cost
for System Impact Study will be pro-rata based on the MW
capacity requested.

In performing the System Impact Study,

the Transmission Provider shall rely, to the extent
reasonably practicable, on existing transmission planning
studies.

The Eligible Customer will not be assessed a

charge for such existing studies; however, the Eligible
Customer will be responsible for charges associated with any
modifications to existing planning studies that are
reasonably necessary to evaluate the impact of the Eligible
Customer's request for service on the Transmission System.
(ii)

If in response to multiple Eligible Customers requesting
service in relation to the same competitive solicitation, a
single System Impact Study is sufficient for the
Transmission Provider to accommodate the requests for
service, the costs of that study shall be prorated among the
Eligible Customers.

(iii) Each Transmission Owner shall pay the Transmission Provider
for System Impact Studies that the Transmission Provider
conducts on the Owner's behalf in instances where merchant
employees of the Transmission Owner have requested
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transmission service, the same as any non-Transmission
Owning customer.
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or requests in writing that the Transmission Provider file a
proposed unexecuted Service Agreement with the Commission, and
(iv) the Eligible Customer executes a Network Operating Agreement
with the Transmission Provider pursuant to Attachment G, or
requests in writing that the Transmission Provider file a proposed
unexecuted Network Operating Agreement.
29.2

Application Procedures:

An Eligible Customer requesting service

under Part III of the Tariff must submit an Application, with a
deposit approximating the charge for one month of service;
provided, however, the Transmission Provider shall have the right
to waive deposits on a nondiscriminatory basis for service
requests if the Transmission Provider determines that the
Transmission Customer is creditworthy.

Unless subject to the

procedures in Section 2, Completed Applications for new designated
network resources, having a term of one year or longer, associated
with Network Integration Transmission Service will be part of the
aggregate study for long-term requests as defined in Attachment Z.
Completed Applications for new designated network resources,
having a term of less than one year, will be assigned a priority
according to the date and time the Application is received, with
the earliest Application receiving the highest priority.
Applications should be submitted by entering the information
listed below on the Transmission Provider's OASIS.

A Completed

Application shall provide all of the information included in 18
CFR § 2.20 including but not limited to the following:
(i)

The identity, address, telephone number and facsimile number
of the party requesting service;

(ii)

A statement that the party requesting service is, or will be
upon commencement of service, an Eligible Customer under the
Tariff;

(iii) A description of the Network Load at each delivery point.
This description should separately identify and provide the
Eligible Customer's best estimate of the total loads to be
served at each transmission voltage level, and the loads to
be served from each Transmission Provider substation at the
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same transmission voltage level. The description should
include a ten (10) year forecast of summer and winter load
and resource requirements beginning with the first year
after the service is scheduled to commence;
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ATTACHMENT D

Methodology for Completing a System Impact Study

Upon receipt of a Completed Application, the Transmission Provider will
determine whether transmission transfer capability ("Available Transfer
Capability" or "ATC") will be available to accommodate the transmission
service requested in such Application.

The Transmission Provider will apply

the criteria and practices described in Attachment C to determine ATC for
Short-Term Firm and Non-Firm Transmission Service requests.

The Transmission

Provider’s Coordinated Planning Procedures, Attachment O, will be used to
determine ATC for Long-Term Firm and Network Integration Transmission Service
requests.

Long-term transmission service requests will be processed using the

aggregate study methodology, set out in Attachment Z.
If sufficient ATC will exist to support the transaction described in the
Eligible Customer's Application, as supplemented with necessary details such
as the sources and sinks of the power to be scheduled under the request, the
Transmission Provider will so inform the Eligible Customer.

If the

Transmission Provider determines that existing ATC is insufficient to provide
the requested service, the Transmission Provider will notify the Eligible
Customer.

Upon a request by the Eligible Customer, the Transmission Provider

will tender a Study Agreement to the Eligible Customer for a System Impact
Study.
Upon receipt of a completed Study Agreement, the Transmission Provider,
in coordination with the affected Transmission Owners, will perform a System
Impact Study to determine whether the request for transmission service can be
accommodated through construction of Direct Assignment Facilities or Network
Upgrades or through redispatch, if available. The System Impact Study will
provide an estimate of the cost of redispatch.
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All requests received during an open season shall be combined into a single
Long-Term aggregate study.

SPP shall determine facility additions necessary

to support aggregated requests.
If the studies predict that a constraint will occur in the system of a
non-SPP transmission provider or non-SPP control area, the Transmission
Provider will so inform the Eligible Customer requesting service.

The

Transmission Provider and Eligible Customer will need to work with the
appropriate parties to determine if the limitation is valid and to determine
the facility additions or redispatch that may be required by others to support
the transfer. The Eligible Customer requesting service shall have the option
to reduce the request to a level that can be sustained without experiencing
the constraint.
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ATTACHMENT J

Recovery Of Costs Associated With New Facilities

1.

Direct Assignment Facilities
Where a System Impact and/or Facilities Study indicates the need to

construct Direct Assignment Facilities to accommodate a request for
Transmission Service, the Transmission Customer shall be charged the full cost
of such Direct Assignment Facilities.

Such costs shall be specified in a

Service Agreement.
2.

Network Upgrades
a. The costs of completed Network Upgrades shall be handled as follows:
i.

During the Transition Period:

The Transmission Customer(s) requesting Transmission Service which
requires Network Upgrades shall pay the costs associated with those Network
Upgrades to the extent consistent with Commission policy.

Such costs shall be

specified in a Service Agreement to be filed with the Commission.
ii.

After the Transition Period:

All Network Upgrades constructed for service under this Tariff shall be
rolled-in with all other transmission facilities.

There shall be no direct

assignment of Network Upgrade costs to Transmission Customers.

However, the

Transmission Provider shall not allow the construction and roll-in of a
Network Upgrade when the Transmission Provider finds more economic or
efficient alternatives.

This roll-in of Network Upgrade costs shall not

include the portion of any such Network Upgrades paid for during the
Transition Period through direct assignment to Transmission Customer(s).
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b. The costs of Network Upgrades that are not completed shall be handled
as follows:
If a proposed Network Upgrades was included in a Transmission Providerapproved Transmission Plan, required by the Transmission Provider, or
otherwise accepted or approved by the Transmission Provider, the Transmission
Owner(s) that incurred the costs shall be reimbursed for those costs by the
Transmission Provider.

These costs shall include, but are not limited to: the

costs associated with attempting to obtain all necessary approvals for the
project and studies and any construction costs.

The Transmission Provider

shall develop a mechanism to recover those costs which will be filed with the
Commission on a case by case basis.
3.

Aggregate Transmission Service

Cost recovery for transmission upgrades during the Aggregate
Transmission Service Study Procedures shall be in accordance with Attachment
Z.
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ATTACHMENT L

TREATMENT OF REVENUES
I.

Payments and Distribution of Revenues

Payment will be made in accord with Section 7 of the Tariff to the
Transmission Provider as agent for the Transmission Owners for all services
provided under this Tariff.

The Transmission Provider will distribute the

revenues received to the Transmission Owners in accord with the provisions of
this Attachment L.
II.

Allocation of Base Transmission Revenues
A.

Grandfathered Agreements

Except by mutual agreement of the Parties to Grandfathered Agreements, the
Transmission Provider shall have no claim to the revenues collected under such
agreements, and shall not collect or allocate any revenues for transmission
service related to such transactions.

The Transmission Owner providing the

transmission service under the Grandfathered Agreements, therefore, will
continue to receive payment directly from the customer under the Grandfathered
Agreement.
B.

Network Integration Transmission Service

Revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Network Integration
Transmission Service under Schedule 9 shall be fully allocated to the
Transmission Owner(s) of the host Zone.

Where a Network Customer has

designated Network Load not physically interconnected with the Transmission
System under Section 31.3, revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for
Network Integration Transmission Service for that network load shall be
allocated to the Transmission Owners on the same basis as Point-To-Point
Transmission Service.
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Point-To-Point Transmission Service
1.

Revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Point-

To-Point Transmission Service under Schedules 7 and 8 associated with power
transactions where the generation source(s) and load(s) are located within the
host Zone shall be fully allocated to the Transmission Owner of that host Zone
whether the generation source is controlled by the Transmission Owner or
another entity.
2.

All other Transmission Provider Point-To-Point Transmission

Service revenues under Schedules 7 and 8 collected by the Transmission
Provider (i.e., other than those revenues specified in paragraph C.1)are
shared between all Zones fifty percent (50%) in proportion to annual revenue
requirements; and fifty percent (50%) based upon the MW-mile impacts incurred
by the Transmission Owners.
those stated in Attachment H.

The annual revenue requirements used shall be
The MW-mile impacts shall be determined by use

of the procedures in Attachment S.
3.

Where there are Transmission Owners within a Zone whose

facilities have not been included in the rates stated in Attachments H and T,
the Transmission Provider will further allocate the Point-to-Point
Transmission Service revenues allocated to that Zone among the Zones
Transmission Owners on the same basis as the revenues are allocated to the
Zone.

For the application of this provision each Transmission Owner shall

have an annual revenue requirement filed with the Commission.
4.

For Point-to-point revenue collected for use over

transmission facilities that have been upgraded in an aggregate study, a
portion of the revenue will be credited to the Transmission Customers.
Transmission Customers who funded the upgrade will receive a portion of the
revenue equal to the response factor percentage of each reservation based on
the monthly ATC calculation.

Allocation shall continue for all new requests

until such time as Transmission Customers have been fully compensated for the
portion of the upgrade over the base transmission service rate, including
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interest per the Commission's regulations at 18 C.F.R. § 35.19a(a)(2)(iii).
The amount of revenue allocated to Transmission Customers shall not exceed
%100 of the revenue from Schedules 7 and 8 after the Transmission Provider has
paid for upgrades required to provide the new service.

For multiple

Transmission Customers having a pro-rata allocation of an upgrade, the
response factor percentage amount shall be divided based on the pro-rata
allocation until each has been fully compensated.

This allocation shall also

apply to Transmission Owners direct assignment costs who exercise their right
to upgrade facilities.
III.

Allocation of Other Revenues
1.

Revenues associated with redispatch service will be paid to

the generation owner providing the service for the Transmission Provider.
2.

Revenues associated with Reactive Supply and Voltage Control

from Generation Sources Services under Schedule 2 will be paid to the
generation owner providing the service for the Transmission Provider
consistent with the development of the charges under Schedule 2.
3.

Energy or revenues received as compensation for transmission

losses shall be distributed consistent with Attachment M.
4.

Revenues associated with Scheduling and Tariff

Administration Service under Schedule 1 will remain with the Transmission
Provider to pay for the costs of providing that service (except for the
revenues for related services provided by individual Control Areas for the
movement of power within, into, or out of the respective Control Areas which
shall go to the appropriate Transmission Owner(s)).
5.

Payments associated with penalties imposed under this Tariff

will be used to reduce the Transmission Provider's Scheduling and Tariff
Administration Service costs (though the non-penalty portion of the charge
will go back to the Transmission Owner(s) that actually provided the service).
6.

Transmission Owner costs associated with System Impact and

Facilities Studies compensated by the Transmission Customer shall go to the
appropriate Transmission Owner(s).
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The revenues associated with Direct Assignment Facilities

shall go directly to the Transmission Owner(s) owning the facilities.

The

revenues associated with Network Upgrades shall be first assigned to the
Transmission Owner building the Network Upgrades to meet the annual revenue
requirements of such facilities.

If multiple Transmission Owners construct

the facilities, the revenues shall be shared in accordance with each
Transmission Owner’s respective revenue requirement for such facilities or as
otherwise agreed by the Transmission Owners.

The remaining revenues shall be

allocated in accordance with Section II of this Attachment L.
8.

The revenues associated with Wholesale Distribution Service

shall go directly to the Transmission Owner(s) owning the facilities
consistent with Schedule 10.
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Any additional revenues received under Section 22.1 shall be

treated in the same manner as revenues under Section II.D. of this Attachment
L.
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SPP Board of Directors

From:

East Texas Cooperatives,
Lafayette Utilities System, and
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority

Subject:

Transmission System Upgrades

There are two items on the agenda for our April 27th Board meeting that
are matters of great concern to us. Both involve how to assign the costs of
upgrades of the SPP transmission system. The items in question are the
proposed Attachments AA and Z to the SPP tariff. We wish the Board to be
aware of our concerns with respect to these items before it acts on them.
1.

Attachment AA

Attachment AA is an experimental practice designed to eliminate some of
the less costly constraints on the system by allowing customers to provide the
money for these upgrades by paying for transmission service in advance.
Attachment AA was developed by SPP staff at the request of a transmission
customer who suggested that, where transmission service cannot be granted
because of a constraint but where the constraint could be eliminated by a
relatively inexpensive upgrade, customers should have the option of funding the
upgrade through a prepayment for the requested service. Inasmuch as
prepayment is offered as an option, customers will avail themselves of the option
only if they expect that the economic benefit of the transaction will outweigh the
economic cost of the prepayment.
The fact that a prepayment option is perceived by SPP as necessary (or
even useful) hints at a much more deep-seated problem in SPP’s approach to
transmission expansion planning. Even though SPP staff’s analysis shows that
many of these upgrades would pay for themselves in a matter of months, the
upgrades remain unbuilt because transmission owners apparently have little or
no incentive to make the upgrades on their own. This absence of incentive itself
arises from the fact that SPP currently lacks an effective long-range approach to
system expansion. Today, even clearly necessary system expansion is
hampered by the zonal rate structure SPP has adopted, by SPP’s method of
revenue distribution, and by continuing uncertainty over what the states will allow
to be recovered through the base rates.
We do not oppose the adoption of Attachment AA on an interim basis,
until a more comprehensive and integrated approach to expansion planning is
implemented. Still, we are disturbed that such an approach has become
necessary. The interests of SPP stakeholders would be served far better by
coming to grips with the underlying deficiencies in SPP’s existing and proposed
transmission planning process. Attachment AA would provide a small measure

of relief from a symptom, but it would leave the far more serious underlying
malady untreated.
2.

Attachment Z

Attachment Z would change the procedures for performing system impact
studies by combining multiple requests for transmission service rather than
analyzing these requests one at a time. The proposal aims at resolving the
problem that there currently is no method available for fairly recovering costs
incurred in one zone for the benefit of customers in another zone. The proposed
Attachment Z attempts to address this by directly assigning these costs to a
group of customers requesting new service. The hope is that by spreading the
cost allocation over a group of customers, there will be more takers and some of
the constraints will be relieved.
We favor the “clustering” approach to system impact studies, as proposed
in Attachment Z. To that extent, it is tempting to view Attachment Z as an
“improvement” over the status quo, in which system impact studies are based on
individual service requests and upgrade costs can wind up being assigned to
individual transmission customers. In truth, however, the cost allocation proposal
embedded in Attachment Z suffers from the same fundamental flaw as the
current approach: as with the current method, Attachment Z would directly
allocate upgrade costs to network customers (albeit groups rather than
individuals). In that way, Attachment Z’s cost allocation approach violates
FERC’s long-standing prohibition against so-called “AND” pricing. We cannot
endorse a proposal that violates such a basic and well-honored rule of pricing,
even if the impact of the violation is thought to be ameliorated by spreading the
prohibited costs over a larger set of customers.
Our views in this area are simple. In general, the cost of upgrades to the
integrated transmission system should be borne by all of the customers who use
that system. In most instances, it is impossible to identify the individual
“beneficiaries” of a network upgrade because an improvement to the integrated
system will yield more than one form of benefit, and because the uses of the
system (and, so, the benefits of the upgrade) are dynamic and change over time.
Assigning cost responsibility for upgrades to specific “beneficiaries” is almost
always an arbitrary process, and it is rendered no less arbitrary simply because
SPP (rather than a more market-interested party) makes the call.
3.

Conclusion: Let’s Address the Underlying Problem Rather than
Continuing to Treat Only its Symptoms

Attachments AA and Z both are intended to provide incremental work
arounds for the problems mentioned above, but (like any work-around) they
leave the underlying problems unresolved. Insofar as Attachment AA is
concerned, the underlying problem is the absence of a comprehensive regional

expansion planning structure that (i) encompasses the needs and interests of all
users of the network, and incorporates the views of affected state regulators;
(ii) establishes reasonable incentives to promote needed construction without
imposing excessive costs on customers, and (iii) sets forth clear procedures for
getting upgrades built if a party designated to construct an improvement
nevertheless declines to do so. Insofar as Attachment Z is concerned, there are
several problems at work, but clearly one of them is that SPP's zonal rate
structure does not accommodate the recovery of costs from customers in more
than one zone, even when an upgrade serves the interests of customers in more
than one zone.
We believe that SPP should aggressively tackle these underlying
problems rather than continuing to patch over their most obvious symptoms. In
other words, we urge SPP to devote its resources to the development of an
integrated approach to expansion planning that provides comprehensive
solutions rather than a series of disjointed work-arounds. Under the FERC order,
SPP is required to do just that. SPP, pursuant to the order, is developing and will
file a transmission cost allocation plan by the end of the year. That plan should,
in our view, resolve these issues after full discussion through the Participant
Funding Symposium process that SPP has initiated.
The foregoing leads us to conclude that SPP would better serve its
customers’ and members’ interests by developing a comprehensive approach to
transmission planning and cost allocation that includes, at a minimum, the
following elements:
•

Rather than pursuing the cost allocation approach set forth in
Attachment Z, SPP should develop options for achieving multi-zone
cost recovery in a systematic and equitable manner.

•

SPP should modify its revenue distribution method, which also
represents an underlying impediment to expansion. Currently, the
revenues produced by sales of point-to-point transmission services
are distributed to the transmission owners in a two-step process.
One half of the revenue is allocated on the basis of the
transmission owner's revenue requirements. The other half is
distributed on the basis of megawatt-miles. The megawatt mile
method is intended to reflect the use of the transmission system.
This method of revenue distribution provides little incentive for an
individual transmission owner to invest money to remove
constraints on the system that are hampering the sale of additional
point-to-point transmission service. The transmission owner
making an upgrade would not be directly allocated the additional
revenue but instead would be required to share it with other
transmission owners. Removing this disincentive would greatly
increase the prospect that needed upgrades will get built.

•

SPP should work with state representatives to resolve regulatory
impediments to expansion. Some transmission owners are
operating under rate freezes, which are in place for a variety of
reasons. Some TOs also are uncertain about what costs their state
regulators will allow them to recover in an RTO context. These
factors create uncertainty as to any TO’s ability to recover upgrade
costs. The uncertainty might be alleviated if the SPP expansion
planning process is one in which state regulators are actively
involved.

In sum, we propose that the Board adopt Attachment AA, but only on an
interim basis until a more comprehensive transmission planning and cost
allocation proposal is placed into effect pursuant to FERC’s February 10 order.
We also propose that the Board adopt the clustering approach to the system
impact study process that is described in Attachment Z, but that the Board reject
the cost allocation procedures in Attachment Z. Finally, we propose that the
Board direct the RTWG and the SPP staff to develop a comprehensive approach
to cost allocation, rate design, and revenue distribution that is consistent with
well-established RTO concepts. This effort should take place with input from,
and in coordination with, the Participant Funding Symposium process that SPP
has initiated to address certain aspects of the transmission cost allocation
process.
We appreciate the Board’s consideration of our views on these matters,
and look forward to further discussion.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

New Tariff Attachment AA
Background and Analysis
The timing parameters for SPP Short-term transmission service reservations (less than one year in
length) require customers to make requests during a limited period in advance of the start of service. The
time frames provided are not sufficient to allow for transmission facilities to be expanded for the benefit of
short-term service. This proposal is designed to allow customers who deal in the short-term market, the
option to prepay for service in order to fund transmission expansion for the benefit of short-term service.
Customers will receive a credit for service at the time the funds are used for transmission expansion.
This is proposed on a one-year experimental basis.
Under this proposal transmission customers have the optional ability to prepay for transmission service.
This prepayment shall be provided back to the customer as a credit. The prepayment will be placed in an
interest bearing account with the interest added to the credited amount. The credits will be applied to the
customer’s monthly invoice at the time the transmission owner expenditures occur. This shall continue
until the customer has been fully reimbursed for the prepayment.
The prepayment amount is limited to the greater of either $50,000 or the largest monthly aggregate
charge paid by the customer for service under schedules 7 and 8 during the 6 months prior to the
prepayment. The transmission customer must have paid at least $50,000 in total charges during the prior
calendar year to participate. This limitation is made to ensure that customers using this procedure are
active in the SPP market and with the expectation that the customer will receive the credits in a short
period of time.
The transmission customers can designate system upgrades that their prepayments will fund. If these
requested facilities are determined to provide benefit, the funds will be allocated for construction based on
the need and benefit of the system. SPP as the transmission provider will work with the transmission
owners in determining the upgrades. The transmission provider shall maintain a list of upgrades that
would improve available transfer capability.
The procedure is proposed under an experimental basis for one year. After that time the merits of
continued used of this procedure will be evaluated. If it is determined to discontinue this procedure, the
applied credits will continue until completely reimbursed.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the new Tariff Attachment AA for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

April 8, 2004
April 15, 2004

ATTACHMENT AA
TRANSMISSION SERVICE PREPAYMENT(Experimental)

1.0

Transmission Service Prepayment

This Attachment allows Transmission Customers to make Transmission Service prepayments for
the Transmission Provider’s use in expanding the Transmission System.

The total

individual Transmission Customer prepayment shall be capped at the greater of either
$50,000 or the largest monthly aggregate charge paid by the Customer for services under
Schedules 7 and 8 during the prior 6 months.

Transmission Customers must have had at

least $50,000 in total charges during the prior calendar year to participate.

2.0

Treatment of Service Prepayment

The Transmission Provider shall use the prepayment made to improve the transmission
system.

The Transmission System improvements made shall relieve constraints that limit

shall be based on upgrading Available Transfer Capability.

The Transmission Provider

shall maintain a list of system upgrades that would improve Available Transfer Capability.
The Transmission Customer can designate the system upgrades for which the service
prepayment is requested to be used or allow the Transmission Provider and the Transmission
Owners to determine which system upgrades to complete first.

The Transmission Provider

shall direct the Transmission Owner to construct the determined system upgrades.

The

Transmission Provider and the Transmission Owner will coordinate the timing, costs,
payment schedule and conditions for the upgrade.

The Funds provided by the Transmission

Customer under this procedure shall be deposited in an escrow account.

3.0

Transmission Service Credit for Prepayment

The Transmission Customers who make a prepayment shall receive future credit for
transmission services provided under Schedules 7 and 8.

The credit shall be provided at

the same time and in the same amount as expenditures are made from the escrow account for
the upgrades.

If construction expenditures have not been made, the crediting shall begin

one year after the date of receipt.

The Transmission Customer shall receive a credit on

all portions of schedule 7 and 8 service that do not already provide for system upgrades.
This shall continue on a monthly basis until the Transmission Customer has received full
credit back for the amount of prepayment made.
interest on the balance in the escrow account.

Transmission Customers shall receive

4.0

Experiment Description

This Transmission Service Prepayment Procedure is hereby implemented on an experimental
basis and may be terminated one year after its effective date; except that credits for
prepayments will continue until such time as the Transmission Customer has been completely
reimbursed.

In the course of the experiment, SPP will assess the merit of continued

offering of this service.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004

Modifications to Service Schedule 4-A
Background and Analysis
Ancillary Service Schedule 4-A, Generation Imbalance Service, was approved for inclusion in the SPP
OATT by SPP’s Board of Directors in a notational vote on January 19, 2004 as part of the SPP filing in
compliance with FERC’s Order 2003. This filing was made on January 20, 2004.
At the time of the Board’s consideration of the Order 2003 compliance filing, OMPA representatives
raised concerns about Schedule 4-A. Subsequent to that filing the RTWG has received and considered a
proposal made by a representative of OMPA intended to:
1. Clarify that Schedule 4-A would only apply to transactions across a Control Area boundaries;
2. Provide a default basis for allocation of generation output among multiple schedules from a single
generator where the generation operator fails to provide a timely basis for settlement;
3. Set a reasonableness standard for acceptance of other arrangements as alternatives to Schedule
4-A; and
4. Establish a new pricing basis for the charges under Schedule 4-A, replacing the use of the
individual Transmission Owner’s FERC approved Schedule 4 rates.
At its April 8, 2004 meeting, the RTWG approved the attached Schedule 4-A for inclusion in the SPP
OATT. This proposal adopts OMPA’s proposal with regard to items 1, 2, and 3 above, and rejects item 4.
The proposal retains the individual Transmission Owner’s Schedule 4 rates as approved by the
Commission.
If approved for filing with the Commission for inclusion in the SPP OATT, the proposed revisions to
Schedule 4-A would be included in a new Section 205 filing and a filing would be made to withdraw the
version of Schedule 4-A pending before the Commission in Docket ER04-434-000.
Recommendation
The Board of Directors approves the proposed modifications to Service Schedule 4-A for filing.
Approved:

Regional Transmission Working
Operations Policy Committee

Action Requested: Approval of the OPC recommendation

April 8, 2004
April 15, 2004

SCHEDULE 4-A

Generation Imbalance Service

Generator Obligations. For a generating station in a Control Area, but not dispatchable by that Control
Area ("Generator"), Generation Imbalance Service is provided when a difference occurs over a single hour
between the scheduled and the actual delivery of energy between the Generator and the Control Area for
transactions that cross Control Area boundaries.
Generator shall use commercially reasonable efforts to avoid the creation of any imbalance.
The Transmission Provider shall not impose both a Schedule 4 charge and a Schedule 4-A charge on
the same transaction within a host Control Area; provided, however, that when one or more schedules from
the same generator (one or more generators with jointly metered output) are being delivered to more than
one load entity (load) within the host Control Area, the Generator must provide a breakdown or allocation
of the actual output of the generator to be credited to each load. If the Generator fails to provide such
breakdown within 3 business days after the end of the month, the Transmission Provider and/or host
Control Area Operator shall allocate the actual output in proportion to the original schedules and settle
imbalances separately for the Generator and for each load in accordance with Schedule 4 or Schedule 4-A
as appropriate. Separate settlements for the Generator and loads shall not be considered as imposition of
impose both a Schedule 4 and Schedule 4-A charges if such action results from the failure of the Generator
to provide the required output allocation within the specified time period.
In the event that the Generator operates in a separate Control Area or the Generator’s output is
dynamically scheduled out of the Transmission Owner's Control Area to another Control Area and the
equipment and related telemetry necessary to accomplish such dynamic scheduling is operational, then
Generation Imbalance Service shall not apply. The Generator must either purchase this service from the
Transmission Provider or make alternative comparable arrangements to satisfy its Generation Imbalance
Service obligation. Unless the Generator makes alternative comparable arrangements, the Transmission
Provider will obtain this service from the host Control Area or elsewhere, where appropriate, and the
Generator shall pay the Transmission Provider for this service when the Transmission Provider provides
this service to the Generator. In satisfaction of this obligation, an appropriate agent or customer of the
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Generator (e.g., its power marketer(s) or customers(s)) may make prior contractual arrangements for the
assumption of the responsibility for this service.
The Transmission Provider will offer this service subject to its determination of the Transmission
Owner's or Control Area operator’s ability to maintain system reliability and to serve other commitments
that exist at the commencement of the hour. In the event that the Transmission Provider determines during
any hour that this service cannot be provided due to Transmission Owner's or Control Area operator’s need
to maintain system reliability and/or to serve prior commitments, the Transmission Provider shall on a nondiscriminatory basis adjust Generator's schedules as necessary, and provide the Generator with as much
notice of such adjustment as is reasonably possible. Generator shall respond promptly to Transmission
Provider's directions to make such schedule adjustments, pursuant to NERC requirements.
If the Generator intends to rely on other arrangements to avoid imbalances, the Generator must
demonstrate, to the Transmission Provider's reasonable satisfaction, that it has satisfied the requirements of
this Schedule 4-A prior to the submission of any schedules for delivery from the Generator. In the event
that the Generator fails to demonstrate to the Transmission Provider that the Generator has otherwise
satisfied the requirements of this Schedule 4-A, the Generator shall be deemed to have elected to take
Generator Imbalance Service under this Schedule 4-A.

Charges. Charges for Generation Imbalance Service shall be calculated pursuant to Schedule 4 of the SPP
OATT; provided, however, that if the Transmission Owner of the host Control Area providing the service
has an applicable rate for Generation Imbalance Service on file with the Commission, the Generator shall
pay the Generation Imbalance Service charge of such Transmission Owner. Charges to the Generator are
to reflect only a pass-through of the costs charged to the Transmission Provider by the host Control Area
operator or other suppliers. The Transmission Provider shall pass through the revenues it receives for this
service to the Control Area operator or other suppliers providing the service. In calculating charges for
Generation Imbalance Service pursuant to Schedule 4 of the SPP OATT, Generator's scheduled deliveries
of energy at the Point of Interconnection with the host Control Area shall be adjusted for ramping, which
shall be in accordance with NERC Policy 3, when such schedules are compared to the integrated values for
the hours affected by such ramping.
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Southwest Power Pool
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004
BOARD APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE REPRESENTATION

Background
On February 10, 2004, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the “Commission”)
issued an order in the SPP RTO filing docket (RT04-1) conditionally approving SPP as
an RTO. Per the order, SPP is directed to, among other things, modify its governance
structure. The order provided direction as to the sectors that must be represented on
the Members Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee (formerly the
Nominating Task Force).
Analysis
The Commission was clear in its requirement that SPP transition to the non-stakeholder
Board of Directors in advance of receiving RTO recognition. This transition includes a
new committee structure for the Committees Reporting to the Board of Directors, per
Section 6.0 of the Bylaws effective May 1, 2004. In accordance with Sections 6.0
Committees Reporting to the Board of Directors and 6.6 Corporate Governance
Committee in the Bylaws dated May 1, 2004, the Corporate Governance Committee
met for purposes of creating a slate of nominees for these committees for consideration
and appointment by the Board of Directors (Attachment). In accordance with those
Bylaws, it is the Board’s responsibility to appoint the representatives to serve on these
committees.
Recommendation
The Corporate Governance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
approve the slate of nominees presented for the Committees Reporting to the Board of
Directors to become effective May 1, 2004.

Approved:

Corporate Governance Committee

Action Requested: Approve the recommendation

April 9, 2004

PROPOSED - April 2004

pre-RTO

Compliance Working Group
Dave Christiano, Chair
Mike McGeeney

Ron Ciesiel, Secretary

post-RTO
Compliance Committee
(3 BOD members)

Josh Martin, Chair
Phyllis Bernard
Quentin Jackson

Ron Ciesiel, Secretary

PROPOSED - April 2004

pre-RTO
Employee Benefits Working Group
Jim Eckelberger, Chair
Nick Brown
Harry Dawson
Trudy Harper
Quentin Jackson
Richard Spring

Tom Dunn, Secretary

post-RTO
Human Resources Committee
(2 BOD members; 2 TOs; 2 non-TOs)
BOD
Quentin Jackson, Chair
Phyllis Bernard

TOs
Richard Spring

KCPL

Mike Deihl

SPA

Non-TOs
Harry Dawson

OMPA

Trudy Harper

Tenaska

Tom Dunn, Secretary

PROPOSED - April 2004

pre-RTO
Finance Working Group
Harry Skilton, Chair
Nick Brown
Jim Eckelberger
Trudy Harper

Tom Dunn, Secretary

post-RTO
Finance Committee
(2 BOD members; 2 TOs; 2 non-TOs)
BOD
Harry Skilton, Chair
Bob Schoenberger

TOs
Doug Henry

Westar

Michael Desselle

AEP

Non-TOs
Trudy Harper

Tenaska

Gary Voigt

AECC

Tom Dunn, Secretary

PROPOSED - April 2004

pre-RTO
Strategic Planning Committee
Richard Spring, Chair
Ricky Bittle
Nick Brown
Dave Christiano
Michael Desselle
Trudy Harper
Mel Perkins
Jim Stanton
Nick Brown, Secretary

post-RTO
Strategic Planning Committee
(3 BOD members; 4 TOs; 4 non-TOs)
BOD
Jim Eckelberger
Josh Martin
Harry Skilton

TOs
Richard Spring, Chair

KCPL

Mike Palmer

Empire District

Mel Perkins

OGE

Michael Desselle

AEP

Non-TOs
Ricky Bittle

AECC

Dave Christiano

City Utilities (Springfield)

Steve Parr

KEPCO

Jim Stanton

Calpine

Stacy Duckett, Secretary

Southwest Power Pool
Finance Working Group Recommendation
To the Board of Directors
April 27, 2004
Finance Committee Charter

Background
The Board of Directors of Southwest Power Pool, Inc. established a Finance Committee
in its draft bylaws submitted with SPP’s RTO application to the FERC. The duties of
the Finance Committee are summarized in the draft bylaws. A more specific scope
document will detail the responsibilities and authorities of the committee.
Analysis
The Finance Working Group has met several times dating back to mid-2003 to
document its activities in a scope document. This scope document was being
developed to support the existence of the proposed Finance Committee that is intended
to replace the functions of the Finance Working Group.
Recommendation
The Finance Working Group recommends the SPP Board of Directors accept the
Finance Committee Scope Statement as the charter of the Finance Committee, and
approve the detailed responsibilities and authorities of the Finance Committee.

Approved:

Finance Working Group

Action Requested: Approve Recommendation

April 16, 2004

Southwest Power Pool
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Organizational Group Scope Statement
May 1, 2004

Purpose
The purpose of the Finance Committee is to oversee all aspects of SPP’s financial operations, primarily
insure appropriate controls, policies and procedures are documented and adhered to allowing SPP to
report accurate financial reports, access external capital as required, while not exposing the company or
its membership to undue risks.
Scope of Activities
The Committee, in discharging its oversight role, is empowered to study or investigate any matter of
interest or concern that the Committee deems appropriate. In this regard, the Committee shall have the
authority to retain outside legal, accounting or other advisors for this purpose, including the authority to
approve the fees payable to such advisors and any other terms of retention. The Committee is directly
responsible for the compensation and oversight of the work (including both audit and non-audit services)
of the independent auditors and for recommending engagement of the independent auditors for Board of
Directors approval. The Committee shall be given full access to the corporation's accounting staff, Board
of Directors, corporate executives and independent accountants as necessary to carry out these
responsibilities.
Specific tasks include:
1. Review and discuss with management and the independent auditors, prior to public
dissemination, the corporation's annual audited financial statements.
2. The Committee shall annually recommend for Board of Directors approval engagement of
independent auditors.
3. Develop, in conjunction with management, a schedule for the preparation and development of the
annual operating budget, capital budget and each special budget that provides sufficient time for
preliminary development by management, review by the Committee, consideration of the
proposed budget by the Board of Directors, and final approval of the proposed budget by the
Board of Directors, in accordance with the overall budget cycle established by the Board of
Directors.
4. Monitor the methodology of cost recovery to insure continuing equity for Members.
5. Develop policies for management of the company’s capitalization, financing and long-term
contracts.
6. Review periodically, with the corporation's counsel, any legal matter that could have a significant
impact on the corporation's financial statements.
7. Discuss with management and the independent auditors the corporation's guidelines and policies
with respect to risk assessment and risk management. The Committee should discuss the
corporation's major financial risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and
control such exposures.
8. Report regularly to the full Board of Directors including:
a. any issues that arise with respect to the quality or integrity of the corporation's financial
statements, the corporation's compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, the

performance and independence of the corporation's independent auditors or the
performance of the internal audit function;
b. actual financial results in comparison to budgeted results;
c. following all meetings of the Committee; and
d. with respect to such other matters as are relevant to the Committee's discharge of its
responsibilities.
9. Review with management and the independent auditors their assessments of the adequacy of
internal controls and the resolution of any identified material weaknesses or reportable conditions.
10. Review annually the Company's Business Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery Programs
as related to financial and MIS risks as well as significant Information Security matters and any
actions being taken to address weaknesses noted.
11. Review and approve annually significant financial and compliance policies which fall under the
purview of the Committee (e.g. Reconciliations, Code of Ethics, Privacy, Compliance,
Regulation O, BSA, Vendor Management, etc.)
12. The Committee shall perform a review and evaluation, at least annually, of the performance of the
Committee and its members, including reviewing the compliance of the Committee with this
Charter.
The Committee is not responsible for certifying the corporation's financial statements or guaranteeing the
auditor's report. The fundamental responsibility for the corporation's financial statements and disclosures
rests with management.
Representation
The Finance Committee shall be comprised of six members. Two representatives shall be members of
the Board of Directors and one of these will be the chairperson. Two representatives from the
Transmission Owner category of membership and two representatives from the non-Transmission Owner
category of membership will be members of the Committee. The Board of Directors and the Members’
Committee shall separately appoint their representatives at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors
immediately following the Annual Meeting of Members. The Board of Directors will designate their two
representatives and designate the chairperson. The Transmission Owners on the Members’ Committee
will designate their two representatives and the non-Transmission Owners will designate their two
representatives. Persons designated as representatives on the Finance Committee will continue to serve
until their successors have been appointed. Where a vacancy occurs, the Corporate Governance
Committee will fill the vacancy in accordance with SPP Bylaws.
Duration
The Finance Committee is a permanent committee. The Committee shall meet a minimum of two times
per fiscal year and at other times as called by the Chair. A quorum will constitute at least half of the
members of the committee but no less than three members. Proxies are allowed if reported to the Chair
prior to the meeting. All meetings of the Finance Committee shall be open to all interested parties unless
closed by the Chair of the Committee.
Reporting
The Finance Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors.

